Longhui International Holdings Limited
RRBERERBRKR LT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(MEASFEEMEZNAERAR])
Stock Code B33 : 01007

2023

ANNUAL REPORT
8]



g '
% O
Contents
H &%
2 Corporate Information 98 Independent Auditors’ Report
NCIE- R BUZBMRES
4 Chairman’s Statement 102 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 6
FRE®mE Other Comprehensive Income
. reEakEMEmkER
6 Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEE R R MDA 104 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
280 AN , SABHRNE
20 Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management 106 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ESLEREREERRE = AR E %
26 Report of the Directors 107 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Exegwms HERERER
41 Corporate Governance Report 109 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
CEREARRSE A mRME

69 Environment, Social and Governance Report 212  Financial Summary . .
RE -HEkERESE M E




e Corporate Information

A& M

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Shui Chak (Chairman)

Mr. So Kam Chuen

Mr. Yuan Mingjie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman)

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman)

Mr. Hung Shui Chak
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Wing Kit
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hung Shui Chak
Mr. Yuan Mingjie

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

2 LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Exg
BITES
RIRIB L (ER)
BETELE

RO L
BYFHITES
EERB L

%R F L
pes F
BEREEE
REFE(EE)
R R L
oE R S
FHESg
ERBEE(ER)

REHEE
ILE R E

REZEE
RE I E(EE)
s

VO S
DEWE
ERY P
REAR

HimE A
RAELELE

SR

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

6/F., Queen’s Road Centre
152 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

AUDITORS

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS

Cayman Islands Principal Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

1007

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.cre8ir.com/longhui/

Corporate Information
N A E S

BRETEEXRME

BEBFRIR
2R/ RKEBEH1525
ERFKNEFRL6E

FEERRIT

RL|ITAERAA
PERT(EER)ARQAE

& BY M

FEHED TR B
MEDEI R
AR F 2 E AL A
A

B ¥ E2855

I E — Ef2918

IR A0 B 5 R
MEHEIEROVBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

EERODBEERSE
EBAPRBHFELERAA
BB

AT

SR RNERI8IHR

A A AL
1711712-171658 &8

B 401X 5%

1007

N E) 49 k

www.cre8ir.com/longhui/

2023 F %R

r
==
EEEBRZERAERAT 3 I-+

i ———




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Longhui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present to you the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are principally engaged in the hotpot restaurant business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s revenue
increased by approximately 13.8% from approximately RMB72.3
million in 2022 to approximately RMB82.3 million in 2023. Loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company for 2023 was
approximately RMB14.4 million (2022: approximately RMB62.3
million). Basic loss per share for 2023 was approximately RMB14.3
cents (2022: approximately RMB77.2 cents).

The decrease in loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
mainly attributable to the increase in customer flow and the
improved operating performance as a result of the lifting of the
novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19") pandemic control measures and
the closure of 3 underperformed restaurants. The number of
restaurants dropped to 9 during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: 12).

The Board would like to assure the potential investors and the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) that the Board
is committed to (i) supervising the management of the Group and to
maintain sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets; and (ii)
continuously and proactively strengthening the corporate governance
of the Company to establish a solid foundation for the operation
and future growth in order to maximise the value of the Company
and hence the return to the Shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to our staff for their dedication
and commitment as well as to our valued Shareholders, customers,
suppliers and other business partners for their support and
encouragement to the Group in the past years.

Hung Shui Chak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the hotpot restaurant business in
the PRC with the brands of Faigo (“}E&F") and Xiao Faigo Hotpot
("/NEEET A ER ). The target customers of the restaurants operating
under the brand of Faigo (“¥#EF") are mainly high-income group
while those under the brand of Xiao Faigo Hotpot (/N &F A §8 ")
are mainly middle-income group.

The Group specializes in seafood hotpot cuisine with a signature
menu which is characterised by the aromatic soup base and a wide
range of selection of seafood and beef. The Company started its
first restaurant in Shanghai in 2004 under the brand Faigo and
gradually expanded its restaurant network to other major cities in
the PRC including Beijing, Shenzhen, Nanjing and Hangzhou since
2010.

In 2013, Sina Weibo, a popular social media in the PRC, chose the
brand Faigo as one of the most popular restaurants amongst
foodies — 20BFHXLEEENAREERE" In 2014, the
Company was named as a five-star merchant by dianping.com, a
widely used search engine for restaurants in the PRC. The brand
Faigo was named as one of the top 10 hotpot brand in 2016 by the
China Hotel Association. In 2018, Xiao Faigo Hotpot (“/]Ni&E&F A $H")
was awarded “China’s Top 100 Hotpot Enterprises in 2017 (20174
B AT R ZE)” by China Cuisine Association.

In 2020, the Group continued to rank among the Top 20 Hotpot
Restaurants in China 2020 ({20207 B X #Top 20)) in the Annual
Report on Catering Industry of China in 2020 ({20207 B & 8k 2 F
fE#]R4)) co-published by China Hotel association and Xinhuanet.
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Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the
restaurants operating under the brands of Xiao Faigo Hotpot (“/)\ &

P8 ") in different regions in the PRC.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1+t—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=f —EF-—

Revenue (in RMB’000) K= (AR¥ T
Shanghai fapis! 24,590 21,964
Wuxi 55 1,673 3,747
Other cities E ™ — 1,420
Nationwide = 26,263 27,131
Number of restaurants as at 31 December R+ZB=+—BHEREHE
Shanghai lapis} 5 7
Wuxi % 15 — 1
Nationwide S 5 8
Average number of customers per day BIEAYEEEMEY

per restaurant (ote 7
Shanghai ladis} 94 82
Wuxi &5 86 92
Other cities EAb 3 — 96
Nationwide £ 93 84
Seat turnover rate per day per BEAYEE A ERmE

restaurant Wote 2
Shanghai fapis} 0.9 0.8
Wuxi = 85 1.0 1.0
Other cities E Ay — 1.1
Nationwide 23 1.0 0.8
Average daily revenue per restaurant BEAYHE

(in RMB) (Wote 3) (A R &) #z)
Shanghai ladis} 10,250 8,510
Wuxi 15 10,456 10,266
Other cities E fb 5 — 10,923
Nationwide 25 10,263 8,820
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLEE

2023 2022
—g-= =Ede
Average spending per customer BEEAYHEE
(in RMB) (Note 4) (AE%) €=

Shanghai Hadis} 109 104
Wuxi S 122 111
Other cities E b 358 T — 14
Nationwide 2H 110 106
Notes: Wi &

(1) Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant (1) FEFE EEBEEREARBRUFARIESLE
operation days during the year. =S e

2) Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant  (2) FESEA E2FEREREAEBRUFARIESE
operation days and average seating capacity per restaurant during the year. HEEBERAEEFES -

(3) Calculated as revenue for the year divided by total restaurant operation days  (3) HERE FRARERAFARELEERAH -
during the year.

(4) Calculated as revenue before business tax/value added tax for the year divided  (4) RTEE FEARIBREER A B AT U 25 BR A
by total customer traffic for the year. FRNEERELH -

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the 3 %Il & 1 B N B b (2 LA [ BF | e 4R
restaurants operating under the brand of Faigo (“#8%[") in different RIEMNE TEBERIEIZ -
regions in the PRC.

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—-BLHFE

2023 2022
= A 5= A

Revenue (in RMB’000) KR(ARE T
Shanghai lapis} 56,010 43,824
Other cities H b — 1,324
Nationwide 2 56,010 45,148
Number of restaurants as at 31 December R+=—A=+—HHWBRIEHE
Shanghai s 4 4
Nationwide % [ 4 4
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2023 2022
ST =g iF EERE = A=
Average number of customers per day per EJE R EZRE WLV
restaurant ot 7
Shanghai & 48 39
Other cities E Ay — 7
Nationwide 2 48 19
Seat turnover rate per day per BEAYEE AN EEHED
restaurant (Vote 2
Shanghai Hupis} 0.4 0.3
Other cities E Ay — 0.1
Nationwide £ 0.4 0.2
Average daily revenue per restaurant BEAYHE
(in RMB) (ote 3 (AR ) #e)
Shanghai 8 38,363 36,039
Other cities Efmm — 3,805
Nationwide £ 38,363 17,459
Average spending per customer BEEAYHEE
(in RMB) (Note 4) (* E ﬁg)(ﬂ#é’ﬂ
Shanghai & 806 923
Other cities HEphm — 554
Nationwide z 806 906
Notes: B it -
(1) Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant (1) FEAE EFERRELAERUFARIELEE
operation days during the year. H#iagr -
(2) Calculated as total customer traffic for the year divided by total restaurant  (2) HERA ETFERAELABRBUFARIEEE

operation days and average seating capacity per restaurant during the year.

(3) Calculated as revenue for the year divided by total restaurant operation days

during the year.

4) Calculated as revenue before business tax/value added tax for the year divided

by total customer traffic for the year.

FESBRNEETIER -

HEFE  FRARERAFAREEERBE -

SHE TR F AR E B B B AT R R A
FRAEEREHER -

2023 F %R
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Following the relaxing of anti-pandemic measures by the central
government in early 2023, the consumer market in China showed
signs of recovery, with a notable increase in consumers’ inclination
to dine at restaurants. The management looks forward to a recovery
in the economy. The overall opening of domestic epidemic
prevention and control measures expand domestic demand and
promote consumption, the consumer market will recover steadily.

The concern of food safety in the PRC from the consumers is an
issue that each and every restaurant chain in the PRC needs to
respond. The Group realizes that the reputation which takes years to
build and protect can be ruined by one single food safety incident
and therefore the Group attaches paramount importance to the
safety and quality of food and has in place a reliable procurement
system which ensures visibility and traceability of food ingredients
throughout the catering service industry value chain. To minimize the
risk of contamination, the Group provides comprehensive training to
its staff, specifically focusing on food preparation practices. These
measures are in place to guarantee that the food served at the table
is safe for consumption.

Looking forward to 2024, the primary focus of the Group remains
on product quality. The Group uphold the philosophy of “seizing
market opportunities through reform and gaining market shares
through transformation and upgrades”. The determination to
overcome upcoming challenges remains unwavering and the Group
aims to introduce even more innovative ideas to solidify its position
as a leading force in the catering industry.

The ultimate goal of the Group is to become the brand with the
highest market capitalization in the Asia-Pacific catering industry.
With a strong commitment to transformation and product quality,
the Group holds the utmost confidence in establishing the company
as the foremost leader in casual restaurants throughout China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 13.8% from
approximately RMB72.3 million in 2022 to approximately RMB82.3
million in 2023. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
customer flow and the improved operating performance as a result
of the lifting of the COVID-19 pandemic control measures

Foods and beverage and other materials consumables
used

The Group’s foods and beverage and other materials consumables
costs mainly represents the costs of food ingredients for the hotpot
business, and were one of the largest component of the Group's
operating expenses. The foods and beverage and other materials
consumables costs increased by approximately 14.5% from
approximately RMB24.2 million in 2022 to approximately RMB27.8
million in 2023.

Employee benefits and related expenses

The Group’s employee benefits and related expenses, being one of
the largest components of the operating expenses of the Group,
consist of wages and salaries, labour outsourcing expenses, defined
contribution plan, other social security costs and housing benefits
and other employee benefits.

The employee benefits and related expenses decreased by
approximately 2.2% from approximately RMB38.8 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB38.0 million in 2023, mainly attributable to the
closure of several restaurants.

The Group entered into an agreement with a third party agent who
provides catering outsourcing services. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group outsources a portion of its low-level positions, such as
waiter or waitress, kitchen assistants etc. The Group pays annual
service fee and other related cost, such as training and social
welfare.

Property rentals and related expenses

Following the closure of those underperformed restaurants, the
Group's property rentals and related expenses decreased by
approximately 46.6% from approximately RMB11.8 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB6.3 million in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®R DM

Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and write-off of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Following the closure of those underperformed restaurants, the
Group’s depreciation, amortisation, impairment and write-off of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets decreased by
approximately 10.4% from approximately RMB20.1 million in 2022
to approximately RMB18.0 million in 2023.

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses, which mainly consist of
professional service expenses, repair and maintenance fee, and
promotion and marketing expenses, decreased by approximately
51.5% from approximately RMB15.7 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB7.6 million in 2023.

Other income, other gains and losses, net

The Group’s other income, other gains and losses, net increased by
approximately 29.5% from approximately RMB5.4 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB7.1 million in 2023, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in gain on lease modification.

Finance expenses, net

The Group's finance expenses mainly represent interest expense on
borrowings, imputed interest on convertible bonds and interest
expense on lease liabilities.

The Group’s net finance expenses decreased by approximately
30.1% from approximately RMB3.0 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB3.8 million in 2023. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in interest expense on lease liabilities.

Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company for 2023
was approximately RMB14.4 million (2022: approximately RMB62.3
million). Basic loss per share for 2023 was approximately RMB14.3
cents (2022: approximately RMB77.2 cents). The decrease in loss was
mainly attributable to the increase in customer flow and the
improved operating performance as a result of the lifting of the
COVID-19 pandemic control measures and the closure of 3 (2022: 5)
underperformed restaurants. The number of restaurants dropped to
9 during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 12).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Earnings/losses before interest, tax, depreciation, and
write-off (the “Adjusted EBITDA")

The Company also assesses its operating performance based on the
adjusted EBITDA as additional financial measures. The Adjusted
EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMB7.3 million (2022: Adjusted EBITDA loss of approximately
RMB15.3 million), representing an increment of 147.8%.

PROSPECTS

Alongside the ending of COVID-19 controls measures in the PRC, the
Group expects the seat turnover rate and average spending will
gradually return to normal and to the level similar to that before the
period of pandemic. On the other hand, the Group will continue
implement the cost-saving and productivity enhancement strategy in
the coming years and expects to maximize the returns of the
Shareholders.

Targeting the High-End Segment

Hotpot restaurants that primarily feature meat as their main food
ingredient tend to have a lower average customer spending
compared to establishments that serve seafood. In response, an
increasing number of hotpot restaurants are expanding their food
offerings to cater to different customer segments. This involves
incorporating seafood into their hotpot menus, which has the
potential to attract more customers from the high-end market.

Furthermore, the Group remains committed to prioritizing the
maintenance of a comfortable dining environment, delivering
attentive services, and providing high-quality fresh ingredients. These
efforts are aimed at retaining and attracting customers from high-
income groups, as they play a significant role in driving revenue
growth for our restaurants.

Inclusive of New Food Ingredients and Flavors

Hotpot dining is embracing the addition of new food ingredients.
Compared to other cooking styles, hotpot is known for its
inclusivity, allowing for easy incorporation of new food options. In
order to maintain customer appeal, hotpot restaurants are
increasingly open to introducing fresh food ingredients in their
menus, going beyond traditional stereotypes associated with hotpot.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded cash and cash
equivalents amounting to approximately RMB2.9 million (2022:
approximately RMB1.7 million) and the net current liabilities value
was approximately RMB192.5 million (2022: approximately RMB189.5
million).

The net liabilities value per share of the Company was approximately
RMB1.90 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately RMB2.32).
The net liabilities value per share was computed based on
100,587,278 and 80,667,866 weighted average number of ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately 0.50 (2022: approximately 0.47), being a ratio of total
debts, including borrowings, amount due to an ultimate controlling
shareholder, amounts due to independent third parties and
convertible bonds, of approximately RMB22.6 million (2022:
approximately RMB20.5 million) to the total assets of approximately
RMBA45.4 million (2022: approximately RMB43.9 million).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF SHARES

The Company completed a placing of shares on 15 August 2022,
pursuant to which the Company has issued and allotted 28,000,000
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) at a subscription price of
HK$0.65 per placing share. The gross proceeds from the placing of
shares was HK$18.20 million and the net proceeds after deducting
relevant expenses was approximately HK$17.64 million. The net issue
price per placing share based on the net proceeds is HK$0.63.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The intended and actual use of the net proceeds from the placing of
Shares is stated as below:

Intended use of

Amount of the
net proceeds
utilised as at

RERDMAERBAFENRERERRART
i

Balance of the
net proceeds
unutilised as at

the net 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2023 2023
R=-TB== R-EBE-=%F
== H e 1= =
EBAN REAW
FrBRIEFEN 8 MIE P8 RIE
BRER®ZE FHEEHE FEA
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B8#T) (B8ET) (B85
Repayment of the existing MBIFE=FEELEE
indebtedness of the Group from IR A (& 7§
independent third parties 15.00 15.00 —
General working capital of the HAEEHAEZEEELE S
Group 2.64 2.64 —
17.64 17.64 =
PLEDGE OF ASSETS EEEF
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no charges on its assets R-ZTE-ZF+—-A=+—H AQR#E

(2022: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 10 February 2023, 20 February 2023, 4 August 2023 and 28
December 2023, 701,096 Shares, 701,096 Shares, 2,804,384 Shares
and 2,804,386 Shares were issued respectively in relation to exercise
of share options (the “Share Option”) under the share option
scheme approved and adopted by the Company on 2 June 2021
(the “Share Option Scheme”).

On 31 August 2023, 252,281 Shares were allotted and issued in
relation to conversion of convertible bonds which issued by the
Company on 4 July 2018 (the “Convertible Bonds").

Save as disclosed, the Company had no changes in capital structure
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Upon the
the terms

share consolidation becoming effective and pursuant to
and conditions of the Convertible Bonds, the conversion

price of the Convertible Bonds and the number of Shares falling to
be allotted and issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds
shall be adjusted with effective on 29 June 2022 (the “Share
Consolidation Adjustment 2022") as follows:

2 RS 2

Bein & B E IR - RIR AR BRE S5 IR 5K R
Rt AR ESOBRRERRNBRABK
BEREGTREERBETORNDEESELT

I
o]

B__FROAHARE]D

Immediately before
the Share Consolidation
Adjustment 2022

RE-Z-FRG
EORER
Number of
Shares to be
allotted and
issued upon

exercise of all
the conversion

B - R-E-_—_FXNAZtABEH(=

Immediately after
the Share Consolidation
Adjustment 2022
EE-_E-__£RH
RHREER

Adjusted
number of
Shares to be
allotted and
issued upon
exercise of all
the conversion

rights under the Adjusted rights under the
Conversion Convertible conversion price Convertible
price per Share Bonds per Share Bonds
RITE
BT TRRESFET
TRRESFET MEERER
EEHRER BFEER
HFEER KA BRONERER
BRERE BONROGHE BREARE R4 8E
Convertible Bonds in the amount of SHEB4,414937B TR

HK$4,414,937 AR %5 HK$1.757% 7T 2,522,821 HK$17.507% 7T 252,281
On 31 August 2023, the outstanding Convertible Bonds in the R-ZT-_ZFNA=+—H KEHITHBRK
amount of HK$4,414,937 has been converted into 252,281 Shares. 1&%54,414,937/8 T2 & # 45252,2810% < K=
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no outstanding ZTZ=F+-F=+—H AQAWTEKRE

Convertible Bonds. BMAIBRKRES -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INVESTMENT POSITION AND PLANNING

Save as disclosed, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiary and associated company or significant investments of the
Group, which would have been required to be disclosed under the
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company acquired the entire equity interest in Longhui
International Catering Management Holdings Limited (the
“Accounting Acquirer”) on 4 July 2018 (the “Acquisition Date").
The substance of the acquisition is a reverse acquisition of the
Company by the Accounting Acquirer and as a result, the acquisition
was accounted for in the consolidated financial statements by
applying the principles of reverse acquisition under IFRS 3 “Business
Combinations”.

On the Acquisition Date, the Group recognised the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the Company as at that date, including the
recorded accrued expenses and other payables of approximately
RMB37,578,000 as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.

These recorded accrued expenses and other payables do not include
any of the unknown liabilities of the Company brought forward
from 1 January 2018, which included the amount due to a
deconsolidated subsidiary of approximately HK$1,028,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB882,000) and unknown other payables of
approximately HK$17,694,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB15,182,000) (collectively, the “Unknown Liabilities”).

The Company had used its best effort to identify the nature of the
Unknown Liabilities including publishing a public notice which invited
any potential creditors to inform the Company of any debts or
claims.
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With the legal advice provided to the Company, according to
Section 4(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Limitation Ordinance (Chapter
347) provides that actions founded on simple contract shall not be
brought after the expiration of 6 years from the date on which the
course of action accrued whereas Section 4(3) states that an action
upon a specialty shall not be brought after the expiration of 12
years from the date on which the cause of action accrued.

The Directors considered that the origin of the Unknown Liabilities is
unlikely to be created under a deed and among other reasons, given
actions founded on simple contract shall not be brought after 6
years from the date on which the cause of actions accrued pursuant
to the Hong Kong Limitation Ordinance (Chapter 347), any potential
creditors would be statutorily barred from taking action against
another person 6 years after the date when the liabilities were due,
unless such liabilities were created under deed, in which case, the
limitation period shall be 12 years from the date of the liabilities
were due. As the Unknown Liabilities were incurred during the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, if the amounts were created
under simple contract, the payment obligation is expired as at 31
December 2019, or if the liabilities were created under deed, the
payment obligations will expire as at 31 December 2025.

Besides, the Company had entered into a debt assignment
agreement with Global Courage Limited (“Global Courage”), a
former shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Global
Courage agrees to undertake all outstanding Unknown Liabilities.

Subject to the above matters, the possibility of outflow of economic

resources in the settlement of the Unknown Liabilities by the Group
is not probable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed elsewhere in this report,
the Group had no other significant capital commitments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi and settled in Renminbi, which is the
functional currency of respective group companies. The Group's
exposure to currency risk is minimal. The Group has not entered into
any instruments on the foreign exchange exposure. The Group will
closely monitor exchange rate movement and will take appropriate
activities to reduce the exchange risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2023
was 272 (2022: 350). Employees’ remuneration is commensurate
with their job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed annually based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group continues to offer
competitive remuneration packages and bonus to eligible staff,
based on the performance of the Group and the individual
employee.

EEEN WK DN

S 5 8 B

AEBEABONEBRS  BERBETIA
ARBHERAAREEN  ZEEEAHE
BEBARMNNEER - AEEHXINER
PR A o 7N 52 B 3 4 Bt HMEE R B AT SZAE AR T
A AEEBEVERERZE - IR
BETHREERRR -

BE R &M EX

AREBR-_ZT-_=ZF+-_A=+—HBZES
A AE2NZ(ZE - —F:3508) - BLEH
BiZzETHEHE BEREREBMEE -BE
TR FeRERBEIZEEMABRERE
BEBRT - ASESREAEERMBNET
MR BERFTEERNEILATAHRSF
T BB A FIEAL

2023 F %R

EEERERAERLE 19 L

mmm




EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Shui Chak (“Mr. Hung”) (formerly known as Hung Pan),
aged 54, is the chairman of the Board, an executive Director, a
member of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) and an authorised representative under
the Listing Rules (the “Authorised Representative”) of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Hung is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
development strategies and business plan of the Group. Mr. Hung
has engaged in the investment and operation of trading of raw
materials in food and catering and automobile business in Hong
Kong prior to 1990. He has vast experiences of investments in
various businesses in the PRC and commenced in investments in the
PRC. He has now accumulated over 20 years of experience in the
management of food and catering industry in the PRC.

Mr. Hung took the overall business development of the Group and
continues to oversee the management of the operations and
business of the Group. He has guided the operations and business
of the Group in adhering to quality and innovation in the operations
since he took up the business development of the Group.

Mr. Hung held a controlling interest in Carsone Car Detailing Service
Company Limited* (BB EBEE)REEXZAFRAF]) (“Carsone”),
a company which principally engaged in motor detailing business in
the PRC, and Mr. Hung disposed of his interest in Carsone to an
independent third party in 2012 and now retains a minority interest
of approximately 5.4% in Carsone. Mr. Hung also remains as a
director of a holding company of Carsone.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENHREEERBE

In 2011, Mr. Hung and Dragonfair International Limited
("Dragonfair”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and the entire issued share capital of which was
held by Mr. Hung, were investigated by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong and subsequently charged for failure to
perform a duty of disclosure within the specific period without
reasonable excuse contrary to sections 310(1)(@), 313(1)(b), 316(2)(a),
324, 325(1)(a) and 328(a)(ii) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), which arose
from certain transactions involved the dealing in shares of Kaisun
Energy Group Limited (“KEG"”) (now known as “Kaisun Holdings
Limited”), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8203). Such dealings happened on 11 December 2009 when
Dragonfair disposed of 7,000,000 shares of KEG, and the
shareholdings in KEG of Mr. Hung (being the sole shareholder of
Dragonfair) and Dragonfair fell to below 5%, hence ceased to have
a notifiable interest. However, pursuant to sections 310(1)(a), 313(1)
(b), 324 and 325(1)(a) of the SFO, Mr. Hung and Dragonfair came
under a duty to disclose to the Stock Exchange and KEG the
cessation of his/its notifiable interest as a result of such disposal
within the specific period under the SFO, but due to
miscommunication with agents who were asked to prepare the
disclosure forms for Dragonfair and Mr. Hung, such disclosure of
interest notifications were not filed with the Stock Exchange and
KEG until 31 August 2010. The summonses were heard at the
Eastern Magistracy and Mr. Hung and Dragonfair pleaded guilty to
the relevant charges, and each of them was fined HK$4,000 and
ordered to pay legal costs of HK$6,396, which had been fully
settled by Mr. Hung and Dragonfair.

Mr. Hung is the sole shareholder and the sole director of Shui Chak
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and the controlling Shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules). Mr. Hung is deemed, by virtue of his interest in
Shui Chak Group Limited, to be interested in 52,842,462 Shares
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), representing approximately 50.15% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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Mr. So Kam Chuen (“Mr. So”), aged 43, is an executive Director.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company and the
supervisor of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. So is responsible for overseeing the overall management, day-
to-day operation and production of the Group. He joined the Group
in 2004 and is serving as the Executive Chef and Brand General
Manager of Faigo (¥ &) and Xiao Faigo (/¥ %F) and has over 20
years of experience in the catering industry and operations
management. He joined the catering business in Hong Kong after
finishing school education in Hong Kong in 1997. During his service
with the Group, Mr. So is responsible for overseeing the operations
of all the restaurants of the Group, developing new cuisine,
controlling the quality of food and services of Faigo (¥=F) and Xiao
Faigo (/N SF) to ensure the upscale of food and services.

Mr. So is personally interested in 948,233 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 0.90% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Mr. Yuan Mingjie (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 44, is an executive Director
and the Authorised Representative.

Mr. Yuan is responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management and reporting and corporate finance matters of the
Group. He has over 21 years of experience in auditing and
accounting in various industries. He was the Vice President and
Corporate Secretary of CY Oriental Holdings Ltd., a company listed
on the Toronto Stock Exchange (stock code: CYO:APH), from 2004
to 2008. He also served as an auditor at PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Yuan
served as the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
Carsone from 2012 to 2018. Mr. Yuan was awarded a Bachelor
Degree in English Language and Literature from Shanghai
International Studies University (_E/&5NEIFERE) in 2001 and a
Master Degree in Business Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/8RB AZ) in 2012.

Mr. Yuan is personally interested in 751,360 shares of the Company,

representing approximately 0.71% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (“Mr. Tam”), aged 60, is an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a
member of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the
Company.

Mr. Tam is a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He holds a Master of Science degree from
University of Oxford and a Bachelor of Science (Engineering) degree
in civil engineering from Imperial College of University of London.

Mr. Tam is the founder and chief executive officer of Venturous
Group, China’s first Citytech™ Group with a mission to make cities
smarter, since April 2019. From 2002 to 2012, he was a partner of
Fidelity Growth Partners Asia (formerly named Fidelity Asia
Ventures), an Asian venture capital firm with a principal focus on
China. Prior to joining Fidelity Growth Partners Asia, Mr. Tam was an
investment banker and a private equity investor in Europe and Asia
with leading financial institutions. He is currently a director of
several private companies. Mr. Tam is an independent non-executive
director of Yeahka Limited (stock code: 9923), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is an independent
director of Hello Group Inc. (stock symbol: MOMO), the shares of
which are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange. Mr. Tam is also a
director of Podinn Hotel Zhejiang Co., Ltd (NEEQ: 839121), the
shares of which are listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations.

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 44, is an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Cheung has over 16 years of experience in financial operations.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration
(accountancy) from the City University of Hong Kong and a master’s
degree in business administration from the University of Manchester
in the United Kingdom. He has been a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Mr. Cheung is currently an independent non-executive director of
AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (stock code: 260) and an executive
director and a joint company secretary of Future Data Group Limited
(stock code: 8229). He was an independent non-executive director of
Hope Lift International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1683) from
February 2021 to October 2023, a joint company secretary of Future
Data Group Limited (stock code: 8229) from July 2021 to August
2021, the finance and investor relations director and a joint
company secretary of Dalipal Holdings Limited (stock code: 1921)
from September 2021 to December 2021, an executive director and
a non-executive director of Sanbase Corporation Limited (stock
code: 8501) from July 2017 to May 2018 and from May 2018 to
October 2019, respectively, the company secretary of Munsun
Capital Group Limited (now known as Bay Area Gold Group Limited)
(stock code: 1194) from November 2016 to January 2017 and an
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of
Modern Dental Group Limited (stock code: 3600) from March 2011
to October 2016. The issued shares of these companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel (“Mr. Shum”), aged 44, is an
independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Shum holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He is a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), a Fellow Chartered and Certified
Accountant (FCCA) and a Financial Risk Manager (FRM). Mr. Shum is
a responsible officer of Sunfund Securities Limited, a licensed
corporation which carries out Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO. He is
also a responsible officer of Sunfund Fund Management Limited, a
licensed corporation which carries out Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activity under the SFO. Mr. Shum has extensive experience
in corporate finance, financial and accounting fields.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENHREEERBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Bi Jia (&£ & L) ("Ms. Bi”), aged 43, is the Public Affair
Manager of the Group. She is primarily responsible for managing the
public and external affairs, coordination between departments and
handling brands related matters of the Group. Ms. Bi joined the
Group on 1 September 2012. She has over 12 years of experience in
secretarial duties. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Bi served as the
Chairman Assistant at Carsone from 2010 to 2012. Prior to it, she
was the Finance Manager of Carsone from 2005 to 2010. She
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Financial Management (81 7% & 12)
from East China University of Science and Technology* (ZEHRIET X
E2) in January of 2008.

Mr. Yu Jun (R %4%) ("Mr. Yu”), aged 41, is the Manager of
Information Technology of the Group. He is primarily responsible for
managing IT related matters of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group
on 18 October 2013. He has over 11 years of experience in
managing IT operations. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu served as
IT Manager at Shanghai Longbong Clothing Company Limited* (1=
GEBREMARAE]) from 2012 to 2013. He was the IT Manager
at Shanghai Baishihao Electronic Business Company Limited* (/85
i EFEBKBMRAR]) from 2007 to 2012. He obtained a Bachelor
degree in Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Donghua
University (3 Z K£2) in 2005.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
6/F., Queen’s Road Centre, 152 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 102 and 103.

The Board resolved not to pay any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023 is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 5 and pages
6 to 19 of this report respectively. Those sections form part of this
“Report of the Directors”.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, as a restaurant chain, the
Group has a large and diverse customer base. The revenue derived
from the top five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases of food
ingredients and other supplies from the Group’s top five largest
suppliers together accounted for approximately 54.6% (2022:
approximately 51.2%), with the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 27.5% (2022: approximately 33.0%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.
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None of our Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders that, to the knowledge of our Directors, own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company had any
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital, convertible bonds and
share options of the Company during the year are set out in notes
24, 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2023, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (2022: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material subsequent events undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 December and up to the date of
this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 212.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Shui Chak (Chairman)

Mr. So Kam Chuen

Mr. Yuan Mingjie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors, are appointed for
a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the amended and restated articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”) of the Company. According to the
Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM").

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. So Kam
Chuen and Mr. Cheung Ting Pong shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM, and both retiring Directors are eligible and
shall offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with the nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”), the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
biographies of each of Mr. So Kam Chuen and Mr. Cheung Ting
Pong, being executive Directors, who will be subject to retirement
and re-election at the AGM, and taking into consideration their
knowledge, experience, capability and various diversity aspects as set
out in the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) as well as their overall contributions and services
to the Company, including their attendance of Board/general
meetings and the level of participation and performance on the
Board over the years.

Taking into consideration of the above, recommendations to the
Board for the proposal for re-election of each of Mr. So Kam Chuen
and Mr. Cheung Ting Pong, being executive Directors, were made by
the Nomination Committee and the Board accepted the nomination
by the Nomination Committee and recommended Mr. So Kam Chuen
and Mr. Cheung Ting Pong to stand for re-election by the
Shareholders at the AGM.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service agreement with the Company which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ CHANGES IN INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Director(s) are set out below:

With effect from 16 May 2023, Mr. Cheung Ting Pong has been
appointed as an executive director and a joint company secretary of
Future Data Group Limited (stock code: 8229).

With effect from 17 October 2023, Mr. Cheung Ting Pong has
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Hope Lift
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1683).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) or as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix C3 of
the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company
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Notes:

(1) These 52,842,462 shares were held by Shui Chak Group Limited. Shui Chak
Group Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Shui Chak. Thus, Mr. Hung
was deemed to be interested in the 52,842,462 shares held by Shui Chak
Group Limited pursuant to the SFO.

(2) The percentage has been calculated based on 105,372,867 Shares in issue as

at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above and so far is known to the Directors, as at
31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons or corporations
(other than Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are, full
time or part time employees of the Company (including any
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not, of the Company); and any consultants or
advisers of the Company who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
has contributed or may contribute to the Company.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including

exercised and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at
the time of making an offer provided that such period shall not
exceed the period of ten (10) years from the date of the grant of
the particular option but subject to the provisions for early
termination but subject to the early termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option
Scheme for which an option must be held or the performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be exercised
under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible
participants in writing (and unless so made shall be invalid) in such
form as the Board may from time to time determine and shall
remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant concerned for
a period of twenty-one (21) days inclusive of, and from the offer
date provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after
the earlier of the termination date or the termination of the Share
Option Scheme.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon
acceptance of an option. An offer of the grant of an Option shall be
deemed to have been accepted by an eligible participant concerned
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such eligible participant
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly
signed by the eligible participant with the number of Shares in
respect of which the offer is accepted stated therein, together with
a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company.

Report of the Directors
EEETWE

BREZTERE

EEREAEGRZART  BEREAIRE
ERMFHZNRBEERBABREARAZ
HEAER 2B HTE  EEEHELT
SHRAREBRER L BMES +00)F -
WARZBRETS ZRPEILEXARR

7 P M 5T 81 0 4 7T BA P ASORE 0 mIAR 9% BB AR
AEZHERITEMBARBEZEERE S
R IBAERZRRBEZE -

BB

REBREZEBNERUEZTSIREEZE
A& 2 (T 2F DA E 2 204 3 8 ) 1)
BERZEERGL ARAER2EENA
REHNBREA —_+—QNAMEAN(BREE
EmB) &M - ERK RSB &R
EAREERE) R BRI EREHE
# e

EEANEENBERAERAM1.00ETTHR
BUERE - EXARRKIAESERSEEE
ARENEIZONEHAA TEBER
EANRNHBE  BRNARFA /X E AN
BEF100BTIERRLENNNKER A
MIRHBRENZOBEESERZAER
SHEERR YL BERAZABRSHER
i -

2023 F %R

EEERERARLE 33 L




Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, provided
that it shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five (5) consecutive business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of
business on the tenth anniversary thereof, after such period no
further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet
exercised.

As at 31 December 2023, a total of 7,010,962 Share Options were
exercised. Save and except for the aforesaid, no Share Option was
cancelled, expired or lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company does not have any
outstanding Share Options and there are no share available for issue
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options and
awards granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (i.e. nil Shares) divided by the weighted
average number of Shares of 100,587,278 Shares for the year ended
31 December 2023 was 0%.
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The following table summarised movements of the Company’s share
option under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31

December 2023:

Number of Share Options
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Notes:

(1) The exercise price of the Share Options is subject to adjustment in the case of
capitalisation issue, rights issue, subdivision or consolidation of the shares of
the Company, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(2) The price of the shares of the Company before the date of the grant of the
Share Options is the closing price of the shares of the Company as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the trading day immediately before the date on which
the Share Options were granted.

(3) The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the Share
Options were exercised is HK$0.803 per share.

(4) The consultant possess extensive experience in, including but not limited to,
strategic planning and implementation for information technology applied in
food and beverage business. The grant of Share Options to the consultant is to
provide them an incentive to share of their respective relevant experience,
knowledge and network to improve the business operation system of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above and other than the share option scheme of
the Company, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2023
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (including their
spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or
short positions in the shares, or underlying shares, or debentures, of
the Company or its associated corporations (with the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which any of the
Company'’s subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries were a party, and in
which a Director and an entity connected to a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time
during the year or at the end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company, or existed during the year under
review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code
set out under Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code"”) and
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, the Company
has not arranged for appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any losses or liabilities incurred, or
any legal actions brought against the directors and senior
management of the Group which may arise out of corporate
activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the
benefit of the directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or in existence during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the vyear, as far as the Company is aware, there were no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that had a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The emolument policy of the senior employees of the Company is
set and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board
on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are formulated and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board, having regards to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance of the Directors
and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

Details of the Company’s retirement benefit plans are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Company encourages environmental protection and promotes
awareness towards environmental protection. The Group, as a food
beverage enterprise, has used induction stoves in daily operation,
which greatly reduced greenhouse gas emissions as compared to gas
stoves. The Group also proactively monitored and reduced the food
waste and strived to zero wastage by promoting, reminding and
suggesting the importance of zero food waste to our valued
customers. The Board will review the Company’s environmental
saving practices and identify other efficiency opportunities from time
to time.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.
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The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, our management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. During the year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its operations, financial position and prospects.
The following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Company that may materially and adversely affect the Group: (i)
future growth of the Group depends on its ability to open and
profitably operate new restaurants; (ii) historical financial and
operating results of the Group are not indicative of future
performance and the Group may not be able to achieve and sustain
the historical level of growth for revenue and profitability; and (iii)
results of operations of the Group may fluctuate significantly due to
low awareness of potential change in the business environment
under outbreak of contagious diseases, such as novel coronavirus
pandemic, which causes a significant economic downturn.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown below which are not known to the Company or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out on pages 41 to 68.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference which are in line with the CG Code and comprises three
independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, was of
the opinion that the preparation of such results are in compliance
with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and
that adequate disclosures have been made.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as required under the
Listing Rules throughout the financial period under review and up to
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) has resigned as the
auditors of the Company with effect from 25 July 2023. RSM Hong
Kong (“RSM") has been appointed as the auditors of the Company
with effect from 26 July 2023 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of HLB.

The consolidated financial statements for the vyear ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by RSM who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
their re-appointment as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Hung Shui Chak

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating the
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as to
achieve effective accountability to the Shareholders as a whole.

Throughout the year, to the best knowledge of the Board, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all the
applicable code provisions as out in the CG Code in force during the
year except for the deviations as mentioned below.

Code Provision C.1.8

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code stipulates that
the Company should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors. During the year, the Company
has not arranged for appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its directors and the Company is in the course of
arranging renewal of the Directors and Officers liability insurance
with the insurance company in accordance with the requirement
under the CG Code.

Code Provision C.2.1

Pursuant to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The role of the chairman of the Board is performed by Mr. Hung
Shui Chak who possesses essential leadership skills and has extensive
knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board believes that
vesting the role of the chairman in Mr. Hung provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership, facilitates effective and
efficient planning, implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and ensures the generation of benefits to the
Shareholders.

Although the appointment of the chief executive officer of the
Company remains outstanding, the overall management of the
Company is performed by the executive Directors and the senior
management of the Group whom have extensive experience in the
business of the Group. Their respective areas of profession
spearhead the Group’s overall development and business strategies.
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Corporate Governance Report
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions with terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

All Directors have confirmed, following the specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses
of the Group. The Directors with a variety and a balance of skills
and experience in restaurant management, business development,
auditing, accounting, financial management and corporate finance
which is relevant in managing the businesses in which the Group
is engaged.

To the best of the knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
Board members and the Chairman.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, value and strategy,
and has satisfied itself that these and the Group’s culture is aligned.
The Directors have acted with integrity, lead by example(s), and
promote the desired culture to support the Group’s pursuit of
success. The fairness, impartiality, honesty, integrity and ethical
long-term business practices should be stated as one of the core
values of the Group.

During the year, the Group has adopted anti-corruption policy (the
“Anti-Corruption Policy”) and whistleblowing policy (the
“Whistleblowing Policy”) to provide the platforms for reporting
issues and concerns on any misconduct, and to uphold business
integrity in the operations. These two policies are the core of
establishing a healthy corporate culture and promoting high ethical
standards in the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group will continuously oversee the day-to-day implementation
of these policies, and consider and approve changes to these
policies, if necessary. The Group believes that a healthy corporate
culture is very important for good corporate governance, which is
essential for achieving the long-terms success and fostering the
sustainability of the Group.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged
for indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

Functions of the Board

The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
strategies, financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals
of the Group and to assume the responsibilities of corporate
governance of the Group. The Board delegates the authority and
responsibility for implementing day-to-day operations, business
strategies and management of the Group’s businesses to the
executive Directors, management of the Company and certain
specific responsibilities to the Board committees.

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises six
Directors, of whom three are executive Directors and three are
independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Shui Chak (Chairman)
Mr. So Kam Chuen
Mr. Yuan Mingjie

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

The names of the Directors in office during 2023 and up to the date
of this report and details of retiring Directors to be re-elected at the
2024 AGM are set out in the section headed ‘Report of the
Directors’ in this report. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this report. Updated list of Directors
identifying their role and function are maintained on the websites of
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at
www.cre8ir.com/longhui/.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established, and
is responsible for the management of the Board and ensures that all
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the
management of the Group and oversight of the
management. The management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group. The roles and division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly
established.

overall

Presently, Mr. Hung Shui Chak is the Chairman of the Company. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for leading the Board and ensuring
that the Board functions effectively.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has not appointed any
individual to the post of Chief Executive Officer. The responsibilities
of the Chief Executive Officer have been performed by all executive
Directors, including the Chairman and the senior management of the
Group.

The reasons for the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 under
the CG Code are set out in the section headed “Compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code” in this report.

Independent of Non-executive Directors

All' Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee. The Company has complied with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive director, with at least one of them
has appropriate accounting and related financial management
expertise as required by the Listing Rules. The total number of
independent non-executive Directors represented half of the Board
members so that there is a strong independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Company is of the view that all of the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

Board Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to approve, among other things, the
financial results of the Company. Regular Board meetings are
scheduled in advance to give the Directors an opportunity to attend.
All Directors are invited to include matters in the agenda for regular
Board meetings. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notices are
given to Directors. Directors can attend Board meetings either in
person or by electronic means of communication.

During the year, a total of six Board meetings were held. There was
satisfactory attendance for Board meetings, which evidences prompt
attention of the Directors to the affairs of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company (the “"Company Secretary”)
is responsible for taking minutes of all Board and Board committee
meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to Board or Board committee
members unless a conflict of interest arises and the final version of
minutes are open for inspection by the Directors upon reasonable
notice.

All Directors have accessed to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in
a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting rather than by a written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors who have no material interest
in the transaction will be present at such Board meeting.
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TEXEERBSE

Attendance at Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the year, the attendance records of the Directors at Board
meetings and the AGM (attendance by either in person or by
electronic means of communication) are as follows:

EZEEBRRRAENHESER

FRN EFREZTERMRRBFAEN
HERECGRERBAEFEAM AN LE) W
N

Number of meetings during the year
Attended/Eligible to attend

FAHE BFERHENEBIRY
AGM
held on
Board 30 June
Meetings 2023
R-ZE=Z=
ANA=t+H
B2
Exged RRBAFKE
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Hung Shui Chak 4/4 1/1
i E St A
Mr. So Kam Chuen 3/4 11
A 5 17 ST 4
Mr. Yuan Mingjie 4/4 11
REAERE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFBTES
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson 3/4 11
BRAKE
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong 3/4 1/1
RERKE
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel 3/4 11
S

The attendance of a Director is stated by reference to the number of
meetings held during his tenure if he was appointed part way
during the year.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each
of them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms
of reference of the Board’s committees, the information on the
duties and responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations
and the Listing Rules, and other information on corporate
governance matters. They will also receive the materials on the
operations and businesses of the Group. The Directors should
participate in continuing professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the vyear, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the
CG Code. Reading materials on relevant topics are sent to the
Directors where appropriate.

Each of the Directors participated in the following trainings during
the year:

TEERBRSG
EEZ \BRERERER
FEEEFKEREAREI - SLEEH

WHEFTRTM EFHEEFELEE
EERNEAEZERRETRAITZBE

ﬁ%“
BR URGEECEEHB L HMER -
BRETKKINEFRAAEHRZES

O e BB
ERENBERATHESSEHER -

TR RHEFSRER
MRS R B R X TES -
FR - EEFSEUTH:

Attending seminars
or giving talks of
seminars/webinars/
conferences/forums
HEBEREHRNE
MEMEE 88/ HNEBBESZR
wiEERRER KB 7% 2w st

Reading materials

development and
duties

WL
K EERDEFBEEXERUERL TN
BREEBTERBEANY

MIEERERE
Al Mﬁﬁm%am#J?WM¥%04M
BREEMEMBMEEE - HETENHE

relating to directors’

Executive Directors
BTES

Mr. Hung Shui Chak
ARk &

Mr. So Kam Chuen
BiRTEEAE

Mr. Yuan Mingjie
RAREEE

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson
BRAKAE

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong

REBKAE

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

ILEREE
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Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of the
Directors

Directors should be nominated by the members of the Board to fill
casual vacancies or as an addition to the existing Board. The
Nomination Committee, in consultation with the Board, determines
the selection criteria and identifies candidates with the appropriate
expertise and experience for the appointments of new Directors. The
Nomination Committee then nominates the most suitable candidate
to be appointed to the Board.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors shall have the power from time to time and
at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code states that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

Each of Mr. Hung Shui Chak, Mr. So Kam Chuen and Mr. Yuan
Mingjie, the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years and shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party by giving three (3)
months’ notice in writing at any time after such initial term to the
other. Moreover, each of Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson, Mr. Cheung
Ting Pong and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel, being the independent
non-executive Directors, has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company for an initial term of 3 years which may be terminated
by either party by giving three (3) months’ notice in writing at any
time after such initial term to the other.
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Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and management of the Company responsible for
different aspects of the business/functions, while reserving certain
key matters in making strategic decision for its approval. When the
Board delegates aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, it gives clear directions as to the powers
of management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management need to report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, (i) to review
half-yearly and annual results of the Group; (ii) to review the risk
management and internal control systems, the effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Group; (iii) to review the effectiveness
of the internal audit function of the Company; (iv) to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of the Company’s financial reporting and
internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate
relationship with the external auditors of the Company; and (v) to
review the coverage and effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy
and to investigate the reports submitted through the channels
described in the Whistleblowing Policy.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises all
three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Tam
Bing Chung Benson and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel, at least one of
whom with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required in the Listing
Rules. All members of the Audit Committee possess appropriate
professional qualifications and experience necessary to give advice on
the Board’s strategies and other related matters. All members of the
Audit Committee have complete and unrestricted access to the
external auditors of the Company and all employees of the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
held two meetings.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are
set out below:

BE_F-_=F+-_A=+-—HLFE  F

RRBERITTMAREH °

BERZEEKRENHECTEEIWT:

Audit Committee

Meeting(s)
Members of the Audit Committee attended/held
BHEBITEX
EREBEEHE ZEEEE
Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman) 2/2
RERBAE(ERE)
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson 2/2
BRAKE
Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel 2/2
LR R EE

During the vyear, the work performed by the Audit Committee
included: (i) reviewing together with senior management and
external auditors of the Company, the annual audit plan, the risk
management and internal control system, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and other financial matters; (ii)
considering and approving the Company’s annual financial results
and this report for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
interim results and interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2023 of the Group, and confirmed that the preparation of such
complied with the applicable accounting standards and practices
adopted by the Company, the requirements of the under the Listing
Rules and other applicable statutory and regulatory requirements
and adequate disclosures has been made.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of RSM as the Company’s external auditors subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with

specific written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are: (i) to make
recommendations to the Directors on the policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) to assess performance of
executive Directors’ and approving the terms of executive Directors’
service contracts; (iii) to review remuneration package including the
performance-based bonus and incentive rewards for the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Group by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time
to time and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors; (iv) to review and make
recommendations to the Board the compensation, if any, payable to
the executive Directors and senior management in connection with
any loss or termination of their office or appointment; and (v) to
review and approve the matters relating to the share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Cheung Ting Pong and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel.

The remuneration of the Directors is based on the performance and
experience of individuals and is determined with reference to the
Group's performance, the remuneration benchmark in the industry
and the prevailing market conditions.

the Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2023,

Committee held one meeting.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMEZEERE

TXERBHEG
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EEMERBNFHMERRR&E AR
AREFMBERZLEAMAERAENIRR
FrAESFHES (IFEATESHR
R ERITEE RS & KRR (i) & 8
2REZETRZANAFABAERTE @ BT
AEERTEERSREEENTMTE(R
RIRRHAAEENTEAKLEEFE) L3
FRTEENFHRESSFELEBES:
(R AERTEELSREEEL2B N
BRI EZERENTRFZHME (WAL
MEFSFLEBZS RV @ RitE £
MARMNBU7ETEENAEERNER -

RABEEH  FTHEEEH =28
TEFEAK IEREEEFHZES T
) RERRERLEBREE -

EEOFHIRBEAAREREH - URE
EREEHRE - 1TFBIEER SN TR
BT -

BTt a ] ==l
MEBERITT—IREHE -
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Remuneration
Committee
Meeting(s)

attended/held

BHEBITHMN

ZEEER

Mr. Tam Bing Chung Benson (Chairman)
BEREBEE(ERE)

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong

REREE

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel

WL H R kA

11

11

11
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the work performed by
the Remuneration Committee included: (i) reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group, including those retired and re-elected at
the AGM. The Company has adopted the model to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management; (ii) reviewing
the performance-based remuneration package of each individual
executive Directors, and his/her terms of services contracts and
recommending to the Board; (iii) reviewing matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and (iv) reviewing
the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior
Management

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and determined
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the corporate
goals and objectives resolved by Directors from time to time.
Directors are entitled to an aggregate annual basic salary. In
addition, each of the Directors is also entitled to a discretionary
bonus as determined by the Remuneration Committee by reference
to the performance of the Group.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 2 June 2021.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

Nomination Committee
The Company has established the Nomination Committee with

written terms of reference of the Company in accordance with the
CG Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are, (i) to review the
structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender,
age, culture and educational background, skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually, and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
all three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung
Ting Pong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Hung Shui
Chak and Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the work performed by
the Nomination Committee included: (i) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the independent of the
independent non-executive Directors; (iii) assessing the appropriate
mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on the
Board; (iv) recommending to the Board on the selection of members
of the Board; and (v) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Policy and terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee.

Nomination Policy

The Board has approved and adopted the Nomination Policy which
sets out the selection criteria, nomination procedures and process in
the nomination and appointment of Directors. Details of the
Nomination Policy are set out below:

1.  Criteria
The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:
o Character and integrity.
. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy.
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Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments.

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity on the
Board.

Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

2. Nomination Process

Zolk

54

Appointment of New Director

2.1.1 The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out in
section 1 to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

2.1.2 If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference
check of each candidate (where applicable).

2.1.3 The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendation to the Board in respect of the
appointment of appropriate candidate for
directorship.

LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BERAZERERBITIEREZES
eREREMESEBREUAREXR
JERHE o

RELMHRAIRERESTERY
BUYEZ URREARTER
B EMARRMEIBLIESIHRE R
BIYEF -

EFE2Z LB RRARARE
REZEXEZTLMERR 2E
At EBER -

ERARARBER 2 EMEBE -

EERESF

7N

LTEHEF

210 REZEER /HERZER
EREAHZEHESNZ
& MR E AR E (R ER
FHBIR REFHMIZ
R EZIREAN - UHEE
ZIREAEERERELE
=

212 WRERFELE—EXZE
ERHEREA AIRRREER
gk /HAEEGRREAL
AINBERSIREANERE
ERzAER(MER) B RER
BEIEFHES -

213 REBEZEQEAZTEREA
BETESEAESSRLE

=
sy
R ©



2.1.4

Corporate Governance Report

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board shall evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out in section 1 to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board shall make recommendation to
Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

2.2 Re-election of Director at General Meeting

22

2.2.2

2.2.3

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including his/her
attendance of Board meetings and, where
applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out in
section 1.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at
the general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

Since 31 March 2016, the Board has adopted Board Diversity Policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
takes into account various aspects as well as the factors concerning
the Board diversity as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, as
follows:

(i)

Purpose and Policy

This policy

aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity

on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance.
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A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors.
These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments
will be based on merit while taking into account diversity
(including gender diversity).

(i) Measurable Objectives

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

(iiij) Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the

corporate governance report, on the Board’s composition

under diversified perspectives, and monitor the implementation
of this policy.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects including, but not limited to, educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board, it ensures that the Board composition is in
compliance with the Listing Rules. Also, it reflects an appropriate
mix of Board’s specific skills, experiences and knowledge and
diversity of perspectives, and contribute to the Board's effectiveness
and efficiency to achieve the Company’s strategy and corporate
governance issues. The Nomination Committee considered that an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board (include
the industry or professional knowledge and experience, gender,
technical skill and management experience) is maintained.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised six male Directors,
and the percentage of male and female employees of the Group are
approximately 45.9% and 54.1% respectively. While the Board has a
domination of male composition, the Company will appointed at
least one female director on or before 31 December 2024 to
achieve a female representation in the Board in compliance with
Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the Group’s workforce (including Directors)
are diverse in terms of gender. The Group will continue to apply the
principle of appointments based on merits with reference to our
Board Diversity Policy as a whole, and we have also taken, and will
continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of
our Company.

December the Nomination

During the year ended 31 2023,

Committee held one meeting.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination
Committee are set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee
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Nomination Committee
Meeting(s)
attended/held
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ZEEE3

Mr. Cheung Ting Pong (Chairman)

REMEE(ERE)

Mr. Hung Shui Chak
I E k&

Mr. Shum Kei Yiu Daniel
LE R K&

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer, while all Directors have access to the advice and
services of her/him to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. The Company
Secretary is also responsible for supporting the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that its policy and
procedures are followed. They advise the Board through the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer on corporate governance
matters and facilitate induction and professional development of
Directors.
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Ms. Li Wing Wah (“Ms. Li") resigned as the Company Secretary on
4 August 2023. Mr. Wong Wing Kit (“Mr. Wong"”) has been
appointed by the Company as its Company Secretary in place of
Ms. Li with effect from 4 August 2023. During the year, each of
Mr. Wong and Ms. Li attended over 15 hours of professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which
include:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board from time to time;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the
employees of the Group; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established the (i) policy and measures to support
anti-corruption laws and regulations; and (ii) Whistleblowing Policy
and measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to raise
serious concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Board about
possible improprieties in financial report or other matters of the
Group. These polities can promote high probity standards and ethical
business practices.

Further details of the Group’s Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistleblowing Policy, please refer to the Company’s website.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy adopted by the Company with effect
from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”), dividends may be
declared and paid to the Shareholders by way of cash or by other
means that the Board considers appropriate. It is the policy of the
Board, in recommending dividends, to allow the Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits, and at the same time, to
ensure the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.
The Company's decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the
future, and the amount of such dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the current and future operations, financial condition,
liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group, as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates,
which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries and
associates to pay a dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
laws of Hong Kong, the Company’s articles of association and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and the Board may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it
deems fit and necessary.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

Pursuant to code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code, the Board
acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for each financial period to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are
responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.
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The statement of the external auditors of the Company, RSM, with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’
Report” in this report.

The Directors were aware that the Group incurred a net loss of
approximately RMB14,544,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB192,536,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Disclaimer of Opinion

The following is an extract of the independent auditor’s report on
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 which included a disclaimer of opinion (“Audit
Qualification”):

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

in our

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB14,544,000
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB192,536,000 and approximately RMB190,702,000, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately RMB22,639,000, including borrowings, amount due to
an ultimate controlling shareholder and amounts due to independent
third parties of approximately RMB3,000,000, RMB5,380,000 and
RMB14,259,000, respectively, all of which were recorded under
current liabilities, while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB2,928,000. These conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

60 LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

ARBINEPAZBEME AR N E B ARF R
BHREWPERETNER  ARAHREE
M ZBEN RS

BEMERAEBREHE_TS_=F+_A
T+ —HIEFEREEHARK14,544,000
TTHFER AEEMNRDEEBLERE
BEENHANRKE192,536,0007T ° ZEIB K
PEAEEEATHETHE  AlEEAEEEE
KERRENEEEREERM -

BERRER

LWTAAEBRREE-_SE-_=F+-A=+
—ALFEZBRAVBHRE 2B Z MR
R EPEETRXRER(ERRE
BERD:

BEEERYE EEENGAVBBRERE
R-BHREFNREPIBEEIBRREANE
BRI ERNERNE - BFEREMZ
FRAMBERREDNTHWEENERRER
ERERREHEER -EMAEMITH  BF
RAREEMBRRCEREBERFURAINE
BERLZBER -

BEBRREREE

EEEEE T -_ZF+_-_A=+t—HLHF
EEXEBFELHAREK14,544,0000T © M
RER: EBESEAERHARFEREEF
oAl 4 A R #192,536,000T & A R ¥
190,702,0007T °

R=_F_=F+_A=+—8"
BIEEH B ARE22,639,0007T © BIEMER -
ERGREIERBREFRERENBLIE=A R
T8 5 Bl 49 A R #3,000,0007T * 5,380,000
514,259,000 * ZHFARBEE - &
EENBEeEREEEDHEARE
2,928,0007T ° ZEBRBENTEERTEE
MoAeeY BESEERELECENEBRE
RNEEf o

i
i
i
=



Corporate Governance Report

The Directors have been undertaking various measures to improve
the Group's liquidity and financial position. The validity of the going
concern assumption on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including: (i) the
successful implementation of cost control measures and business
plans to improve the Group’s operating results and cash flows; (ii)
the receipt of additional sources of financing from the ultimate
substantial shareholder and external lenders as and when needed,;
and (iii) the successful of carrying out fund raising activities to
obtain financial resources as and when needed.

As a result of these multiple uncertainties and in view of the
significance of the extent of the uncertainties relating to ongoing
availability of finance to the Group, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves about the
appropriateness of the use of going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Potential Impact on the Groups’ Financial Position

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
amounts of its assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
future liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities to current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Management’s View on Going Concern and Measures to
Address the Audit Qualification

The management are of the view that the Group is able to continue
as a going concern after taking into account future projections of
the Group's cash inflows from operations and the following
measures taken as of 28 March 2024 to improve the Group's
liquidity position:

(i) obtaining consent of the ultimate substantial shareholder of the
Company to provide continuous financial support to the Group
to enable it to meets its obligations when due:
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Shui Chak Group Limited (“Shui Chak Group”), the ultimate
substantial shareholder of the Company, had provided a signed
letter of support to the Board and the auditors, confirming its
intention to continue to financially support the operations of
the Company and to provide adequate funds for the Company
to meet its liabilities when fall due for at least the ensuing
twelve-month period from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

However, the auditors were of the view that mere intention
reflected in the said letter of support was not enough to
substantiate the provision of financial support as and when
needed, and requested Shui Chak Group to provide actual
financial assistance to the Company,
approximate to the amount of current liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2023.

in an amount

The management were of the view that the actual financial
assistance from Shui Chak Group is not strictly necessary as
the net current liabilities position would not significantly affect
the cash flows and thus the going concern of the Company.

negotiations with the Group’s principal bank for new banking
facilities;

implementation of various cost control measures, slowing down
the opening of new restaurants or closing down
underperforming restaurants in the future to improve the
Group's operating results and cash flows:

The management had prepared a cash flow forecast of the
Group for the next twelve months after the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements, which showed
improvements to the Group’s operating results and cash flows
as no new restaurant was opened during the forecast period.
However, the auditors requested for the detailed plan of
closure of underperforming restaurants but the management
could not provide a definitive plan as closure of restaurants
would depend on further monitoring of the Group’s
restaurants’ on-going operating performance and the length of
remaining lease terms of the underlying leases; and

formulation of business plans to raise new capital by carrying
out fund raising activities.
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The management considered that it has made its best efforts to
provide all available information and supporting documents to
demonstrate that the Group will have adequate working capital to
meet its obligations for the next twelve months after the year
ended 31 December 2023. That said, the Company understands the
auditor’s view that material uncertainty exists as to whether the
management will be able to achieve its plan and measures as
described above and such uncertainty could not be addressed by
28 March 2024 with the mere provision of documents and
information.

The Company has given due consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and the available sources of financing in
formulating its action plan to address the Audit Qualification.

The plans and measures taken/to be taken include: (a) maintaining
ongoing negotiations with external lenders to obtain additional
financing as and when needed; (b) continuing the implementation of
cost control measures, which include cautious business planning,
closing down underperforming restaurants if considered appropriate
and close monitoring of operating expenses in 2024; and (c)
conducting fund raising activity(ies) for the purposes of addressing
the Audit Qualification and enhancing the general working capital of
the Group. Overall the Board is of the view that the aforesaid plans
and measures could help to address the Audit Qualification.

Audit Committee’s View on the Audit Qualification

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Audit Qualification and
considered the views and concerns expressed by the auditors. The
Audit Committee agrees with the management’s position towards
the Audit Qualification and that the measures taken by the Group to
address the Audit Qualification will support the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in the next twelve months after the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Notwithstanding the above conditions, the financial statements were
prepared based on the assumption that the Group can be operated
as a going concern.
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TEXERBHE

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2023 provided by the auditors of the
Company, RSM are as follows:

AT B =

BRARRRBMERINBE_T _=F
TZA=T—HLEFEREKEIRSE KX
R zMEmT

Type of Services RMB’000
BR 75 %8 Bl ARMT T
Audit services ZH RS 870
Non-audit services IEAZ EAR 75 —
Total st 870

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems. Internal control designs are implemented to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Such controls cover major areas such as
corporate governance, revenue and receipt cycle, expenses and
payment cycle, financial reporting and compliance management. The
Audit Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group on behalf of the Board.

The Group’s risk management process includes identification,
evaluation, implementation of mitigation measures and review. In
order to further ensure compliance with relevant statutory
requirements, the Group engages external professional advisers, such
as consultancy firms, auditors and external legal advisers to render
professional advice so as to comply with statutory requirements
(including PRC rules and regulations and the Listing Rules) as
applicable to the Group from time to time. The Group had provided
Directors with training, development programs and/or updates
regarding the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the
business operations of the Group.

During the year, the Group engaged a professional internal control
consultant to conduct a review of the Group’s internal control
design effectiveness, including the compliance risk management
control, financial reporting and disclosure control, and controls and
procedures over expenditure and payment cycle and human
resources cycle of the Group.
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The internal control consultant reported directly and primarily to the
Audit Committee and assist the Board in monitoring and managing
the risks and internal controls of the Group. Internal control design
weaknesses and recommendations for areas of improvements have
been reported to the Audit Committee. The Group has established
management action plan to implement the internal control
enhancement measures recommended by the internal control
consultant.

The Audit Committee concluded that there were no significant
internal control failings, weaknesses or significant areas of concern
identified during the year which might affect our Shareholders. It
opined that an adequate and effective internal control system is
maintained to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the
Group's assets.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to the
Board by sending their written request to the principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

Sending Enquiries to the Board

The Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board by
addressing them to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, presently at 6/F, Queen’s Road Centre, 152 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong, by post.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Pursuant to article 83(2) of the Articles of Association, subject to the
Articles of Association and the Law, the Company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person as to be a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.

Pursuant to article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than
the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registration office provided that such
notices must be lodged with the Company at least fourteen (14)
days prior to the date of the general meeting of election but no
earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election.

The Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the general meetings under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands other than to
propose a person for election as a director. Shareholders who wish
to make proposals or move a resolution may, however, follow the
procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting” above by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for putting forward proposals at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at 6/F., Queen'’s
Road Centre, 152 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) to ensure the
Shareholders’ questions and concerns are the appropriately
addressed. The Board has the responsibility to review the policy
regularly to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Shareholders” Communication Policy set out the provisions with
the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company in order to promote effective
communication with the Shareholders so as to enable them to
engage actively with the Company and exercise their rights as
Shareholder informed manner. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy is available on the Company’'s website at
(www.cre8ir.com/longhui/) and emphasizes the maintenance of
ongoing communication with the Shareholders.

in an

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with
its Shareholders through various means includes: (1) financial reports
and other corporate communications. The publication of the
financial reports (interim and annual reports) and other corporate
communications including but not limited to announcements,
circulars, notices, proxy forms and other regulatory disclosure will be
provided to Shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules and
any other relevant laws and regulations to facilitate Shareholders’
understanding; (2) Shareholders’ meetings. (i.e. general
meeting, extraordinary general meeting or any other Shareholders’
meetings); and the members of the Board, in particular, either the
chairmen of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives will attend annual general meetings to
answer Shareholders’ questions in normal circumstances; and (3)
Company’'s Website. The availability of latest information of the
Group on the Company’s website at (www.cre8ir.com/longhui/)
which is an effective communication platform to the shareholders
and the investors as well as the general public.

annual

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of
relevant information to its Shareholders and investors and discloses
information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes
periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders” Communication Policy for
enhancing the investors relations, and the investors understanding of
the Group's business performance and strategies.

T XEBBE

RRBEBBBEREING B EBRIRRES
BER: - TEMRBESBBEARABNENE
LAGEBONER REERRENEX
BB MERSREMERD2ERNARER
WHEMBBATITEREERRRAOER o
U - N G-~ T NI/ =) < R
(www.cre8ir.com/longhui/) & 5 » LA K 58 3 62
BRERFHEBBR -

EEeEBREREBRNITE R EFER R
BEEFE BENYBREREMARB
Mo BHRE(FHBRERFERE) REM
ARABEF BEEBETERAE - BE B
HE RRZERBREMEETHEE  BERE
EHRA REWEMERERERERTIEL
REFRE UHFTERRESE: QRERE
(BIRRBEFARE  BEFH K HEME
HMBRERE) MEETKRE  BRIREEZE
BgFIRAE/RR  BENTHEREAER
EEBRRBFAS EEFBERNEERE
IR RQR)ARRQFEIL o NERENAARQF
43 3k (www.cre8ir.com/longhui/) 3 W & # &
B AEBREEEEUNRARHERE
BES -

ARBHANBFRKFZERAE - LRAR
HERMBREEAARERREARERNZ
BEFEREMRABEER - URRIENA
BERERARREMERNRERASE o

FR EFECEARRBABRRNEER
MR AR EERR  BIREET
MASBERERRERKE -

2023 5% HEBEMERERAD 67 &




e (orporate Governance Report

TRERKS

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amendment was made to the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Shareholders of the Company approved the amendment to the
memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company at the
AGM held on 30 June 2023 and also adopted the amended and
restated memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
in order to (i) reflect the amendments to Appendix 3 to the Listing
Rules regarding the core shareholder protection standards (the “Core
Shareholder Protection Standards”), which became effective on 1
January 2022, and to conform to the Core Shareholder Protection
Standards; and (ii) make some house-keeping changes.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

RE T8 RERRS
CONCEPTS AND PRINCIPLES W& 2 R BB R R B
Reporting period of this section covers the period from 1 January A EIEREESHE_—_= _fﬁ—ﬂ—lﬂ%—‘:
2023 to 31 December 2023 with certain content beyond such _—\,__i‘i’ A=+—H8 ' #52ARBH
period. & & o

Longhui International Holdings Limited (“Longhui International”)
issues its Environment, Social and Governance (“ESG") report
regularly on an annual basis.

Report content covers the business performance of Longhui
International’s headquarter and its subsidiaries, including the 10
restaurants under the brand of Faigo (“ME&f”) and Xiao Faigo
Hotpot (" /N # & A # ") in Shanghai, China, as well as its
administration office.

This section is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) under Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
("HKEx"). The reporting principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”,
“Balance” and “Consistency” set out in the Guide underpinned the
preparation and contents of this report, as well as the presentation
of the information. This report covers the same period as the
Group's fiscal year.

To reduce paper usage, no printed copies of this report are provided.
The figures and data in this section are from our archived files, records
and statistics. If you have any feedback about this section, please
email to jyuan@faigo.com.cn, to help us improve and keep abreast
of the times.

OUR COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY

As a renowned hotpot chain in the PRC, Longhui International has
always upheld the right business operation and business ethics. We
are committed to replicating the successful business model into
various regions of China to become an outstanding hotpot
restaurant chain in the PRC.
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We believe that outstanding environmental, social and governance
management is the cornerstone of sustainable development. Due to
the continuous outbreak of the novel coronavirus pandemic
("COVID-19") in the past three years, the whole world has realized
the huge impact climate change is having on humanity, which
undoubtedly placed the catering and tourism industries at the
epicenter. We would like to take this opportunity to express our
sincere gratitude to all employees for their efforts over the past
three years of epidemic and for staying with us during this difficult
time to enable the normal operation of the Group’s business. With
Longhui International’s years of market experience, industry
knowledge and commitment to success, we will overcome all
challenges. 2023 is the first year of the post-pandemic era. The
overall macroeconomic environment has achieved a stable
development with the resumption of normal operation of the society
and the introduction of various economic stimulus measures by the
central government. However, the catering industry continues to face
challenges such as the slowdown in growth and the transformation
of operational strategies since 2021, and Longhui International has
accelerated its effort to cope with the changes in market and
policies, maximizing operational excellence and striving to maintain
its brand competency through cost control, demonstrating high
resilience and steady development in a sluggish market. Hence, even
though the Group closed three Xiao Faigo restaurants in 2023, we
reassured impacted staff and offered them priority re-employment
pledges.

We have taken pre-emptive measures to nearly switch to all low
carbon and clean induction stoves in response to climate change. In
the future, the Group will gradually replace other energy
consumption with cleaner energy, such as using electric vehicles in
transportation to reduce overall carbon emission.

Through communication between the Group and its employees,
suppliers and other stakeholders, the most important issues for the
Group in 2023 were still the health and safety of employees and the
food safety and quality management. Therefore, in 2023, the Group
had been concerned about the health and safety of its employees
and the provided reassurance for the employees from the closed
restaurants. Meanwhile, in addition to the continuous stringent
control of the quality of ingredients to ensure the high quality of
food in restaurants, the Group has also stepped up its ESG
requirements and assessment of its supply chain partners to enhance
the efficiency and quality of operation.
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Longhui International adheres to sustainable development by
continuously renewing its environment, society and governance
practices.

First, in terms of environmental responsibility, we actively respond to
climate change, continuously monitor energy consumption, explore
the use of clean energy, strictly cooperate with waste control, and
raise the awareness of environmental protection among our
employees. At the same time, the Group is committed to
contributing to the central government’s goal of peaking carbon
emissions by 2030 and achieving carbon neutrality by 2060.

Second, in terms of social responsibility, 2023 is the first year of the
post-pandemic era, and all economic activities have gradually
resumed normal operation. As a result, Longhui International focuses
more on safeguarding and caring employees; we combine customer
needs and quality management to create “efficient and high quality”
restaurants; at the same time, we keep community needs in mind
and continue to give back to the community on a regular basis to
help each other and build a harmonious community.

Third, in terms of corporate governance responsibilities, we strictly
comply with all laws and ethical standards; strictly monitor our
suppliers and establish long-term amicable relationships; establish a
fair and effective employment system to ensure the rights and safety
of employees and retain talents; manage quality and build mutual
trust with customers. In addition, we continue to optimize our
efforts in information disclosure to ensure that timely, accurate and
complete information is provided to all the stakeholders of the
Group.

Longhui International continues to place ESG at the core of its
strategy and actively responds to the challenges of climate change.
We promise that while pursuing stable development in the future,
the Group will strive to achieve sustainable development planning to
make long-term contributions to the sustainable development of the
world.
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BOARD STATEMENT

While pursuing its business development, the Board of Longhui
International attaches great importance to ESG and sustainability
management.

The Board of the Group strictly complies with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange to formulate strategies and targets related to ESG
and sustainability, review the progress of the target and take overall
responsibility for the ESG strategies and reporting of the Company.

Every year, the Board is involved in all processes of discussing,
assessing, prioritising and finalizing significant ESG issues. Business
risks are assessed based on the Group’s internal and external risks
and the importance of stakeholders and their potential risks are
analysed and studied in order to formulate medium and long-term
ESG strategies.

During the reporting period, the Board has discussed and approved
the significant ESG issues identified and formulated ESG strategies,
objectives, risk control and management approaches based on the
relevant issues. The Board regularly reviews the relevant ESG work,
updates the risk assessment, optimizes the ESG governance
structure, and proposes and implements the future sustainable
development direction.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

We understand that the promotion of sustainable development is a
long-term and sustained plan, therefore, we have been in close
communication with individual stakeholders in hope of improving
the sustainable development strategy of the Group by responding to
their concerns, absorbing new ideas and evolving to adapt to the
constantly-changing external environment, thus creating longer-term
value for stakeholders while ensuring that the Group is on the right
developmental track. During the reporting period, the Group
communicated with stakeholders through various means such as
interviews, questionnaires, regular reports, seminars,
service hotlines, third-party surveys and community and charity
events. We collected their opinions and questions which had been
reported to the management, and adopted those feasible to improve
daily operating performance.

customer
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PERFORMANCE IN 2023

The continuous outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in the past
three years has led to significant changes in people’s habit of dining
outside, including the number of times they dine out and dining
hours. Coupled with the slowdown in economic growth and the
geopolitical instability in various countries, people’s financial position
and consumption confidence has also been affected. Therefore,
2023 remains a difficult year for the catering industry. In face of the
ever-changing market environment, policies and daily needs, Longhui
International’s business operation will have to evolve accordingly, but
our corporate values and culture over the years will never change.

On the premise of maintaining its own specialty hot pot, despite the
tough operating conditions, Longhui International only closed three
Xiao Faigo restaurants, which demonstrated the Group’s efficient
operating strategy and ability to successfully retain the entire brand
and maintain the normal operation of the Group in an adverse
economic environment. By the end of 2023, Longhui International
had 9 outlets, of which four were Da Faigo and five were Xiao
Faigo.

Food safety and quality had always been a top priority for Longhui
International. The Group took food safety and quality management
seriously and insisted on putting customers first. In order to cope
with the increase in customers after the pandemic, we strived to
innovate services and menu items, empowered food safety
management with technology, and utilized special services such as
digital ordering to meet different customer requirements and
enhance customer satisfaction.

Although people’s lives have gradually returned to normal after the
pandemic, Longhui International’s awareness of the health and safety
of employees is no less than that during the pandemic. We have
taken effective measures to protect the health and safety of
employees and to meet their daily needs. The Group’s emphasis on
safety not only protects employees, but also provides a safe, clean
and tidy dining environment for customers. It is one of the
manifestations of a catering enterprise’s social responsibility that
employees are offered a secured job while the enterprise can grow
healthily and provide services to the community. The Group's
persistence has distinguished Longhui International from other hot
pot restaurants and made it popular among customers.
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Environmental Responsibility

As a food and beverage enterprise, the Group always adheres to the
principle of environmental protection. To cater for the needs of
environmental protection, the Group has used induction stoves in
daily operation, which greatly reduced greenhouse gas emissions as
compared to gas stoves. Meanwhile, we strictly comply with and
adhere to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({ZEARXEMEIIRIERE L)), Energy Conservation Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({4 A R £ B & 49 88 JR)%))
and other relevant laws to conserve energy and restrain from
wastage as well as promote the recycling of resources in an effort
to protect and improve our environment. Pursuant to relevant laws,
the Group has put in place strict supply chain management
processes and strengthened its management of daily operation.

During the reporting period, given the nature of the Group’s
business, hotpot catering service, which does not involve any
production or processing business, the Group’s greenhouse gas
emission mainly derived from the carbon footprint of electricity,
water, gasoline and natural gas consumption in its 9 restaurants and
delivery vehicles in Mainland China.

Longhui International’s total greenhouse gas emissions in 2023 was
1,196 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, representing a year-on-
year increase of 59% as compared with 751 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent in 2022. The increase was mainly attributable to
the full lifting of the prevention measures in the PRC in 2023, the
resumption of normal business hours and operation of the Group’s
restaurants, as well as the closing of three restaurants during the
year, which led to a rise in the total electricity consumption required
and the average electricity consumption per restaurant.
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Among the greenhouse gas emissions, purchased electricity that are
indirect emissions increased by 83% year-on-year from 489 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent in 2022 to 895 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent in 2023.

Natural gas fuels in stationary sources in direct emissions increased
by 36% year-on-year from 211 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
in 2022 to 287 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent in 2023. Due to
the reduction of restaurants, customers can only go to our
restaurants that are still in operation, resulting in an increase in the
average natural gas consumption of each restaurant. However, its
year-on-year change is relatively moderate compared with purchased
electricity.

Combustion of fuels for automobiles in direct emissions decreased
significantly by 75% year-on-year from 51 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent in 2022 to 13 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent in
2023, mainly due to the reduced frequency in using vehicles of the
Group for delivery orders and other logistics work after the
pandemic.

Due to the above factors, our greenhouse gas carbon dioxide
emission density increased from 0.106 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent per square metre in 2022 to 0.208 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent per square metre in 2023.

In 2023, the Group recorded a total water consumption of 36,916
cubic metres, which is similar to the 36,616 cubic metres in 2022.
Due to the closing of two restaurants during the year, the water
consumption density increased by 24% year-on-year to 6.434 cubic
metres per square metre in 2023.
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Greenhouse gas emissions RERBHENE 2023 2022 2021
(in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent) (M-EtREE) —g-=fF —Z-Cf ZZ-—F
Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) BE-(EEER 301 262 329
Fuels in stationary sources & 5E IR MR R 287 211 292
Combustion of fuels for automobiles BRI B 13 51 37
Scope 2 (Indirect Emissions)’ (AR 895 489 1,757
Purchased electricity ﬁ%% 895 489 1,757
Total (Scope 1 & Scope 2) A (BE-HEE= 1,196 751 2,085
Greenhouse gas emission density BERBHNRE 0.208 0.106 0.184
(Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/square (=& ﬁ?é/ﬁﬁﬁf)
metre)
Energy consumption B2 R E #
Gasoline 5,695 litre # 21,708 litre # 16,188 litre 7+
Gasoline consumption density (litre/square metre) mEE HEREFA/FHK) 0.992 3.073 1426
Electricity 1,492,250 kWh 815,280 kWh 1,603,184 kWh
FR# TR# FRE
Electricity consumption density (kWh/square EREBE(TRE/FHX) 260.060 115.413 141.267
metre)
Natural gas ARR 132,760 square 97,401 square 133,692 square
metre 3 733K metre 3 /K metre 3 5 £
Natural gas consumption density (cubic metre/ KRR ERZE(LHK/ 23.137 13.788 11.780
square metre) FHK)
Total water consumption #FEK
Water consumption (cubic metre) AKE(IFXK) 36,916 36,616 NA 7~ F
Water consumption density (cubic metre/square K (2 A%/ FHXK) 6.434 5.183 NA T i@ A
metre)
Waste disposal? BYNEEE’
Non-hazardous waste BEBZEY
General waste and waste water (Food waste) —RENNSK(BHEES An amount An amount An amount
disposal (daily average of each restaurant) (FTHEREEXR) equivalent to two  equivalent to two equivalent to two

Non-hazardous waste density
(ton/square metre)
Hazardous waste disposal

n The Group adopted the indirect emission factor of 0.5810 kg/kWh updated by 0)
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC in 2022 for the year

2021.
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m =z | &= ﬁ;iAi
IR iﬁ %j: = KB & =
) The general waste generated by the Group is mainly food waste. As the official 2 SEAMEEN —REVETEREH - ARKER

amount of food waste that are collected is currently not available, the industry
norm (two barrels of food waste per day) is used in data disclosure. We will try
to make more systematic disclosures when more relevant statistics are
established in the future.

i The data shown above are from the self-operated restaurants under the
respective brands of “Faigo” (“##%F") and “Xiao Faigo Hotpot” (“/MEEAH")
of the Group and closed restaurants in the middle of the Year, as well as our
administration office.

On top of greenhouse gas emissions, the Group also attaches great
importance to the discharge of non-hazardous waste. Our strict and
proactive waste monitoring highlights the Group’s outstanding
management capabilities, which established pride among our
employees and trust among our customers, as well as pushed our
suppliers to be more attentive. The Group recorded non-hazardous
waste density of 0.108 tonnes per square metre in 2023, which is
similar to the 0.105 tonnes per square metre in 2022.

Reduce Food Waste and Strive for Zero Wastage

Longhui International is committed to reducing food waste. We have
taken action in two directions in our daily operation management:
restaurant customers and strict internal supervision.

Regarding restaurant customers, we have adopted a three-step
approach, namely promotion, reminder and suggestion. For
promotion, we have signs posted on eye-catching spots in the
restaurants, reminding customers to order food based on their
actual needs and not to waste food. For reminder, once customers
are seated, we will inform them the portion of each serving as well
as remind them there are various choices on the menu with small
portion, such as platter etc. For suggestion, we will review
customer’s orders and suggest them to reduce the portion if they
have over-ordered; we also serve certain dishes at a later time and
if necessary, so as to avoid excessive serving and the subsequent
wastage.

In terms of strict internal supervision, we will standardize the
amount of food plated, aiming to standardize the services at each
restaurant and reduce food waste as much as possible. At the same
time, in order to meet customers’ desire to try new foods while
preventing food waste, we add on our menu a variety of platters to
cater for their demands. Moreover, we provide trainings for our
employees to ensure that they know the amount of food in each
dish of the restaurant, so that they can provide customers with
appropriate instructions and suggestions, preventing customers from
misestimating the amount of food and the subsequent wastage.
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Strict Monitoring on Food Waste

In respect of food waste management and disposal, we have
established strict internal guidelines and staff codes, which strictly
comply with the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, ensuring that employees deal with and dispose
food waste and other waste in accordance with the requirements of
the local governments and shopping malls. Meanwhile, we comply
with the measures on kitchen waste, for instance the Measures on
the Disposal of Kitchen Wastes in Shanghai ({_t /&2 & 173 & 18
B PL)). Restaurants in Shanghai has reached an agreement
with the shopping mall on the disposal of food waste: complying
with relevant provisions, our staff should discard food waste into
special containers and, assuring that the waste does not overflow
the containers, leave them to the shopping mall for collection and
follow-up treatment. The waste will then be transported away by the
environment and hygiene department.

In addition, in respect of the disposal of hotpot soup base, the
Group also strictly adheres to the requirements of the local
governments, such as the Implementation Opinions of the General
Office of the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government on Further
Tightening the Regulatory and Remediation of the Disposal of Waste
Grease from Kitchens in Shanghai ({ £/ A R T A ERERKE
—IMEBATEREEHELEREEBRRTIFNEMRER)). Waste
grease is separated out from the used soup base in a grease trap in
accordance with the relevant requirements and collected in
designated sealed containers. Then, the waste grease collected will
be transferred to professional recycling service providers for
follow-up treatment. The treated waste broth will only be discarded
after all these processes. To ensure that our employees fully comply
with the regulatory requirements, each restaurant of our Group is
required to sign relevant documents and contracts, such as
Agreement for the Engagement of Recycling Waste Grease from
Kitchens (Z B EE Z M ME Z sE U5 )) and Labour and Services
Agreement for Disposing and Cleaning of Grease Trap (Oil-water
Separator) (F@ii KD BERS) B - (RBREBHE)), under
which the penalties commensurate with the non-compliance cases
are specified to ensure the implementation of the provisions.
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RE 2 RKEARBE
Efficient Use of Water Resources ARERKER

The Group as a food and beverage enterprise utilizes a large
amount of water. We are always concerned about escalating water
shortage around the globe as well as other issues. We are therefore
in the process of establishing a water-saving mechanism aiming for
water conservation. For example, we reuse scouring water in an
effort to reduce washing time with running water without
compromising hygiene.

Social Responsibility
Making Employees our Priority

Employees are the greatest asset of a food and beverage enterprise,
all of the Group’s recent achievements should be attributed to our
outstanding employees for their reliable and high-quality products
and services. Therefore, we always place emphasis on talent
management and consider it an integral part of the long-term and
sustainable development of the Group. Longhui International offers
a fair and auspicious development platform to the employees
through effective talent acquisition and performance assessment and
supervision. To achieve co-development between employee’s
capability and the Group’s growth, we offer an enticing package to
attract talents and provide various opportunities of training and
promotion to make sure every employee may excel at their position
and cultivate their sense of belonging and achievement.

Similar to 2022, 2023 was still a prolonged cold winter for food and
beverage enterprises in the whole nation. The three-year impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic and the slowdown in macroeconomic
growth had a severe impact on the Group's business development.
The Group closed certain restaurants in the past three years and
dismissed relevant employees in order to maintain a sustainable
operation capability. However, our employee reduction plan is
conducted in full compliance with the Labor Contract Law, with no
oppression of employees or unpaid wages whatsoever. We have
retained as many employees as possible in relation to the size of the
restaurants and businesses we have closed. In addition, we have
added new human resources guidelines so that when our business
improves, laid-off employees will have priority in hiring.
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Employee Related Data & 5 16 B8 &t 1%
2023 2022 2021
=t K = e —ET=-—F
Total number of employees BRESTAH 268 350 429*
Employees by gender =R E D
Number of male employees EMHETAK 123 153 175
Proportion of male employees EMBE I 45.9% 43.7% 40.8%
Number of female employees 7B I A 145 197 254
Proportion of female employees ZHETIhit 54.1% 56.3% 59.2%
Age distribution of employees BIF®HDMH
Age 16-24 16-24 5% 9.3% 8.3% 14.6%
Age 25-40 25-4073% 37.3% 40.0% 40.2%
Age 41-59 41-597%, 47.4% 471% 43.3%
Age 60 or above 605% 3 A E 6.0% 4.6% 1.9%
3 The total number of employees in 2021 has been revised based on the effective ~ * —E-—FEIRHZREEARAAMABIE
date of the employees’ contracts
EMPLOYEES BY GENDER AND AGE IN 2023
CECCHFETIRMAIRFRE D
Age 16-24 (6.0%) B Male St
16-245% (3.3%) B remale &
Age 25-40 (18.3%)
25-405p% (19.0%)
Age 41-59 (18.7%)
41-595% (28.7%)
Age 60 (3.0%)
or above 3.0%
605% 3 A £ (3.0%]
Il L 1 1 L J
0 10 20 30 60 70 80

Due to the impact of the pandemic and the slowdown in economic

growth, the total number of employees and restaurants of the
Group decreased from 350 and 12 at the end of 2022 to 268 and
9 at the end of 2023, respectively. The gender ratio tends to be
balanced and similar to that of previous years. The Group continued
to decentralize the distribution of employees by age group in 2022
and 2023 and encouraged the hiring of individuals aged 16-24 and
over 60 years old.
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RIE  #HE2RKREBRBE
2023 2022 2021
Employees by geographical region ST ZihE 5 # —B-=F L e —T-—F
Hefei* & 0.0% 4.3% 6.5%
Shanghai 8 100.0% 90.9% 89.7%
Wuxi 5 0.0% 4.9% 3.8%
* Hefei restaurant was closed in mid-December 2022 i EREEEEE T _—_F+=_AFHE
Employees by gender and geographical region =M R E o
Shanghai &
Male: 123 (45.9%) B 123 A(45.9%)
Female: 145 (54.1%) Z 1% 145 A (54.1%)
Employees by BT 2023 Proportion 2022 Proportion 2021 Proportion
employment type Ll —E-=% G === e —T=—&F (Y54
Full time X 233 86.9% 350 100.0% 522 100.0%
Male B4 110 41.0% NA NA NA NA
~HEA THEA A iE A E A
Female it 123 45.9% NA NA NA NA
A A A iE A A A
Part time FB 35 13.1% 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
Male B 13 4.9% NA NA NA NA
~EA i B i A NER
Female pegi 22 8.2% NA NA NA NA
T iE A TiE A T iE A A

For the purpose of flexible staffing and enhancing cost control
efficiency, the Group started to employ part-time employees in
2023, who are mainly responsible for the frontline work of the

restaurants.
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Data of Turnover Rate EER4EEEZE
2023 2022 2021

—BC-=Ff = e —ET_—F
Net turnover rate BIFREAR 25.5% 39.5% 36.4%
Number of turnover, net EIFRAH 82 172 232
Proportion of male employees EMEThE 36.6% 33.3% 48.0%
Proportion of female employees 8 Tihtk 63.4% 66.7% 52.0%
Turnover rate by age distribution EIRKEFRDM
Age 16-24 16—-2475% 9.3% 14.3% 47 1%
Age 25-40 25-405% 37.3% 26.2% 35.3%
Age 41-59 41-595% 47.4% 52.3% 17.5%
Age 60 or above 607% 5 A & 6.0% 7.2% 0.00%
Turnover rate by EIRIXERMBWED M

geographical region
Hefei* A e * 18.3% 30.9% 2.4%
Shanghai Bapis! 81.7% 66.7% 94.8%
Wuxi 1 15 0.0% 2.4% 2.8%
& Hefei restaurant was closed in mid-December 2022. Some employee contracts  * AEEEEE_T-__F+-AFHE - HHE
ended in 2023. BEHR-_ZE_=ZF%K
Breakdown of turnover rate in 2023 TECCFRERARAD
Number of turnover, net: 82 EEFRAANE: 82
Net turnover rate (%): 26.5% BEFMALL T (%) 26.5%
Turnover rate by gender and Proportion Proportion
employment type REARRUEIRERERE S Male (%) Female (%) Total
(unit: person) (Bf: A8 2t {HH(%) Z# {EE(%) g
Office staff (development) WAZEET(HE) 3 3.7% 5 6.1% 8
Frontline staff (sales, restaurants) AIERET (58 ME) 27 32.9% 47 57.3% 74
Total I 30 36.6% 52 63.4% 82
82  LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Frontline
Proportion staff  Proportion
Turnover rate by age group and employment FRAZZERAHK Office staff (%) (restaurants) (%) Total
type ERERYS BT
(unit: person) (Bfi:AR) BAEET 15 £E (%) (M) 1 (%) “ay
Age 16-24 16-2475% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0
Age 25-40 25-407% 6 7.3% 31 37.8% 37
Age 41-59 41-595% 1 1.2% 34 41.5% 35
Age 60 or above 605730 b 1 1.2% 9 11.0% 10
Total By 8 9.8% 74 90.2% 82
|
Professional .
and Non- |
management  Proportion management  Proportion
Turnover rate by age group and employment FHRAZRERAHK staff (%) staff (%) Total !
hierarchy ERERES B¥R FEE I
(unit: person) (Bfi:AR) EEHAR 1 £k (%) HE 1 £k (%) ag
Age 16-24 16-247% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0
Age 25-40 25-405% 0 0.0% 37 45.1% 37
Age 41-59 41-595 0 0.0% 35 42.7% 35
Age 60 or above 605% 3k M £ 0 0.0% 10 12.2% 10
Total L 0 0.0% 82 100.0% 82
Frontline
Proportion staff ~ Proportion
Turnover rate by geographical region Office staff (%) (restaurants) (%) Total
(department) BREZBHE(HM 82 ARET
(unit: person) (B AR) WAZEET 18 b (%) (FJE) 16 (%) By
Shanghai i 8 9.8% 59 72.0% 67
Hefei Ak 0 0.0% 15 18.3% 15
Total By 8 10% 74 90% 82

The Group’s number of turnover, net was 82 in 2023, representing AEBE —ZT =~ ZF 8 FRKk AL AES2A 18
a significant improvement compared to 171 in 2022 and 232 in HZFTZZ_FmMI7IAM T = —FH232A
2021. With the measures taken by the Company’s management to HAHEENE - BEARIEHEEA NI HES
effectively target at operation and the vision of economic recovery, FTERERAIFEHE © LA R E A EEEHENES @ &
we believe that our turnover rate will continue to improve. MEERIAESEENS -

r
==
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Employment and Recruitment Practices

The Group places strong emphasis on compliance and strictly
complies with the national code and regulation of employment and
Labour Contract Law in our talent acquisition procedures. A series of
review procedures are in place to prevent any misstatement,
discriminations and illegalities, such as the use of child labour and
forced labour. We offered fair opportunities to our employees with
a standardized policy, and they are assessed based on their work
attitude and competency for any personnel affairs, including
promotion and re-designation.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
noncompliance in relation to regulations on employment or forced
labour and child labour.

The Group attaches great importance to human resources affairs.
The employment terms and conditions are expressly stipulated in
employment contract, Employee Handbook, Role Description and
Employee Attendance and Absence System, etc., and were explained
to the employee prior to employment. In addition, with a view to
ensuring fair and impartial recruitment of talent, the Group takes the
initiative to create discrimination-free and respectful workplace for
every employee. We guarantee fair treatment to employees and
applicants regardless of their race, colour, gender or religious belief
and adopt the same method in calculating remuneration for all
employees.

In addition, we have a two-way communication mechanism with our

employees, provide maternity leave for women and paternity leave
for men, and offer human rights-related training.
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In order to retain talents, the Group upholds the principle of
fairness and has put in place a polished reward and punishment
mechanism to improve the enthusiasm of our employees and reward
them for their contribution, while further boosting the efficiency and
service quality of our restaurants or departments. The Group has a
series of requirements on remuneration management which are
expressly set out in the Requirements on Employee Reward and
Disciplinary Action. Direct supervisors will report to department
managers or directors on employees who satisfy the reward
conditions for their review, then Reward Application Forms of
relevant employees will be submitted to the personnel and
administration department for final approval. Relevant reward will be
distributed along with salary. Subsequently, such Reward Application
Form will serve as a reference for career advancement of the
employee. At the same time, the Group encourages education,
training and instruction for any employee involved
disciplinary offences. Nevertheless, in more severe cases, instead of
consultation, the employee will be subject to formal disciplinary
actions for the offence and the employment contract may be
terminated if necessary. Relevant employee shall compensate the
Group for the losses suffered by the Group arising from such
disciplinary offence. The system is applicable to every staff.

in  minor

For job-related injuries or work-related deaths, the Group will pay
social insurance for the employees uniformly, and in case of
job-related injuries, the Group will report, identify, claim, appraise
and settle for the employees. Employee injury matters will be
handled by the human resources department of the Group and will
be supervised and reviewed by the director and manager of the
human resources department at each level, while relevant
remuneration and expenses will be reviewed by the financial
department. All departments and outlets will check their own safety
hazards. The Group will assign experts for inspection, and once a
safety hazard is found, the person involved will be ordered to rectify
the situation and be punished in accordance with specific
circumstances.
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R HERERHSE

The safety and health of employees have always been a part of our
attention. Therefore, the Group has established a complete safety
control and monitoring mechanism with reference to the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases ({/ZE A R LA BB 227w Bh 0475 ) ), the Work
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(F#EA R KEXME L
& 4 E L)), Industrial Injury Insurance Regulations of the Peoples’s
Republic of China ((TERE:{A)), Regulations on Labour Security
Supervision (& BNREEEZ{EHI)), etc., under which the human
resources administration center is responsible for the overall planning
of compliance assessments of laws and regulations, as well as the
safety management of dangerous areas to promote the Company’s
work on occupational safety and health and provide guidance and
supervision of such work. During the reporting year, no cases of
work-related injury and reports of lost working days due to work
injury was recorded, which reflects our efficient implementation of
policies on employee safety and health.

REEIMRFELZEZETNRE MEE—
ERAKBEIFERAN R - Bt - A& H
2 R(P A R A B B 20w B e 7R )
ARKMBE L 24 EX)THRBIEH)M
(BHREERGINERILT ZEBNL R
EELEE#Y  AANTRHELEERSE
REVZRERARUTELRERULTEERE
T UHEEARRRELEMBERRT
B UTHEBBRLTETFETESRES -
BEFA ARBEREBRGSEANRIZEM
ATBERANTHERERE  DETHRMY
BTR2RRBEBRROSEMNTS -

Office  Frontline

staff staff Others Total
WAEBT HIKET Hit ae
Number of work-related injuries IXBAE 0 0 0 0
Proportion of work-related injuries IRELX 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Number of work-related fatalities TRRTAZ 0 0 0 0
Proportion of work-related fatalities AIXTHE 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total mE 0 0 0 0

Frontline
Office staff staff Others
WAERT AI#RET H
Lost days due to work injury AIGEBEANITIEXRE 0 0 0

Despite the numerous challenges we have ahead in our operation,
the Group will keep pace with the times and polish the existing
employment policies to complement a more comprehensive range of
disclosure in the future.
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RE T8 RERRS
Staff Training BIE

Hygiene is essential to food and beverage industry, nonetheless, the
brand image of an enterprise is directly determined by the service
performance of its employees. Employees are provided specific
trainings for each job position upon employment, equipping them
with sufficient knowledge to discharge duties in their respective
position. We also target to explore more potential of employees
through on-the-job training, which enable us to adjust work
assignation accordingly to align with the Group’s sustainable
development.

In 2023, each employee of the Group, including the management,
undertook training. Without the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic,
all training was conducted on a store-by-store basis, and our
employees had undertaken an average of two to three hours of on-
the-job training per week. In the future, we will continue to
enhance our existing training system, provide more systematic
training for our employees, enhance the quality of teamwork and
promote employees’ emergency handling abilities in daily operation,
so as to provide our customers with services of highest quality and
satisfaction.

Recognition and Appreciation to Our Staff

In addition to remuneration, promotion and medical insurance, the
Group offer different kinds of rewards to our staff in recognition of
their dedication and contribution, so as to increase their sense of
belonging to the Group and to encourage our staff to share
happiness with their family and friends. Without the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has gradually restarted physical
team building activities in 2023 while still retaining some web-based
recognition. Compared to local recognition meetings, web-based
meetings allow employees to receive attention from all branches,
which can help boost their morale.

Ensuring Health and Safety of Employees

During the past three vyears,
job-related injuries or casualties.

there were no case arising from
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Health and safety of employees are of utmost importance. We have
strictly complied with the laws and requirements in the PRC to
ensure our employees work in a safe environment. Pursuant to
existing laws including Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FREARKMBEILEAEE)), Regulation on Paid Annual
Leave for Employees (B T & % & & 1)), Social Insurance Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({F#EAREZMBE LS REE))
and Regulation on Labour Protection for Female Workers ({ Z B T
BB RENE)), the Group has formulated a series of measures for
relevant standards, ensuring that all of our employees are protected
in respect of their health and occupational safety.

For job-related injuries or deaths, the Group will pay social insurance
for the employees uniformly, and in case of job related injuries, the
Group will report, identify, claim, appraise and settle for the
employees. All departments and outlets will check their own safety
hazards. The Group will assign experts for inspection, and once a
safety hazard is found, the person involved will be ordered to rectify
the situation and be punished in accordance with specific
circumstances.

— Body checks for employees

In terms of employees’ health, we believe that good health
and safety are a prerequisite for our staff to provide the best
service for our customers, therefore we arrange body checks
for staff in the course of recruitment. Additionally, the Group
provides its employees with annual body checks so that they
have certain understanding of their own health conditions and
the Group can assign workload accordingly. Moreover, our
catering staff is required to obtain a health card under the
Group's specific Health Certificate Management System of
Employees before they commence working. Accordingly, all of
our restaurants are required to follow this system and shall
require the staff to review and renew their health card
regularly. The Group places high emphasis on body checks
during recruitment and employment as well as annual body
checks. We hope that customers can receive high-quality and
excellent customer services when visiting our brands.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, we placed more emphasis on
the health of our employees by requiring them to conduct
nucleic acid tests and formulating a code of practice for
services during the pandemic, such as wearing masks inside
the restaurants, washing hands frequently, and not travelling to
high-risk areas during non-duty hours for the sake of personal
management.
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Safety and protection measures for employees

We ensure a safe workplace for employees to achieve smooth
daily operation for our business. Therefore, the Group arrange
on-the-job guidance and training on daily operation for newly
recruited employees in relation to understanding the
requirement of their positions with an emphasis on the
prevention of potential injuries in relation to their health and
safety. Upon induction, employees also receive regular
instruction aiming to remind them of the importance of
occupational health and safety.

We are in strict compliance with Fire Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((RFZEARKEMBEGE)) to
regulate fire control at our restaurants. In order to set out
regulations and response in a more systematic manner, we
have also formulated the Training Manual on Fire Control over
Safe Food Production (CGHFF R mEEZ 2 IFMM)), which
sets out common causes of restaurant fires such as improper
operation or aging electric circuit. It raises the fire safety
awareness of employees and educates them about firefighting
equipment, standard of use and other points to note. Each
department and outlet conduct its own safety review to
identify loopholes. The Group also assigns a responsible
personnel to conduct restaurant inspection and immediately
rectify any loopholes identified, and impose disciplinary action
on the person in charge of the venue in accordance with the
specific situation. In addition, with a view to improving the
contingency capability of our restaurants, we also arrange fire
drill for employees to become more capable of responding to
any emergency in a timely manner, thereby offering further
safety protection for our customers and employees.
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Insurance coverage for employees

The health of employees is the key to success of an enterprise.
The Group provides medical insurance pursuant to the
regulations of its operating regions, so as to safeguard our
employee’s life effectively. We make contributions to social
insurance for our employees in accordance with the law,
providing protection for our employees at all time. For
example, once an accident occurs, the personnel department
of the Group will approve the work injury report from
employee and calculate the salary and reimburse the medical
expense during convalescence in accordance with the local law.
After the convalescence, the personnel department will assess
capacity for work of the employee and make reasonable work
injury compensation based on respective injury severity.

On top of various insurances, the Group has put in place a
comprehensive set of structures and terms to expressly
stipulate the reasonable protection for employee rights. For
example, Employee Attendance and Absence System clearly
sets out a management guide that complements and protects
employee rights. Overtime work shall be assessed and
recorded by relevant person in charge and the calculation of
overtime work should start after the end of regular work hour
at 18:30. Various policies formulated by the Group require
support by different measures, departments and structures and
Longhui promises to provide continuous protection for each
and every valued employee in an active manner.

The Group strictly complies with the Labor Contract Law and
various local regulations and ordinances, and will take the
following remedial measures in a timely manner if violations
are found: for example, dismissing underage employees;
truthfully informing job seekers of their working hours and
remuneration package and honoring them; returning
employees’ deposits and all kinds of property; revising the
content of job postings so that no discriminatory words (e.g.
gender, ethnicity) are used, etc.
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and Governance Report

RE #HERERMRSE
Sustainable Supply Chain Management AREERNHEEER
— Assessment and Recruitment of Suppliers — ZERREFAHRER

We are introducing the concept of sustainable development
into our supply chain management, where we explore the
possibility of promoting innovation and reform in business
management as well as reform in industry development by way
of sustainable supply chain innovation and reform, with a view
to building a community where the interests of customers,
enterprises and suppliers are aligned for a more sustainable
future. We will integrate green practices and environmental
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HES W TXERNEE  BEBEE
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protection into our procurement review standards, connecting HEa e
them with considerations including safety, environmental
protection, quality and risk management.
Number of suppliers by brands per area in 2023 —E - = FmE R EE 5 e
HIEFEH
Xiao Faigo Xiao Faigo Xiao Faigo Da Faigo Da Faigo
(Jiangsu)  (Shanghai*) (Others)  (Shanghai*) (Others)
MEF MEF MEF RE REH
(CI#) (Lg*) (Hftb) (Lg*) (Eft)
Domestic suppliers W e 2 31 18 33 17
; Both Da Faigo and Xiao Faigo have 4 suppliers in Shanghai that are the & RIEFFR BN EEHAMEHRERER
same.

Number of suppliers by

geographical regions BihEE 5 HEFEE (unit: supplier) (proportion:%)
(unit: supplier) (Bfr:x) (Bfr: R) ({5 %)
Shanghai & 60 69.0%
Beijing b= 1 1.1%
Jiangsu pag-=3 2 2.3%
Zhejiang T 7 8.0%
Others HAh 17 19.5%
Total B 87 100%
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Breakdown of supplier items in

2023 —E_=CEHEEYRASD (unit: supplier) (proportion:%)
(unit: supplier) (B R) (B R) (45 EE %)
Ingredients and equipment Mk R & R

Equipment FERR 3 3.4%
Ingredients MEHR 11 12.6%
Subtotal NET 14 16.1%
Food and packaging BEmkEER

General contracting e 4 4.6%
Subcontracting pal2k 22 25.3%
Fresh food MR M@ 14 16.1%
Frozen food RIER M 33 37.9%
Subtotal /NET 73 83.9%
Total B 87 100.0%

During the Year, the Group had an aggregate of 87 qualified
suppliers, which were all domestic suppliers in the PRC.

As the Group engages in hot pot business, most of our
operating risks lie on the quality of our food. Since we do not
run our own production lines, therefore the Group places
extremely high requirements on supply chains.

Product quality, delivery timeliness, product price, compatibility

and stability are factors that the Group puts strong emphasis
on when considering engagement of suppliers.

Q2  LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FAR AEBHBIRABEER &2
MABPEAMMEER -

HRAEENRBSABER - RAZ
ERBRABOFREMRYMNESE -
HPRBERLER  PIARAEEEHR
HEREGEETHEKX -

EnEE RXEERYE ERER K
EEMBEERASELHRNERHE
BIEFTERNERRE -



Environment, Social and Governance Report

B 5

Technology-powered Food Safety Management

The Group's restaurants cover different regions of the country. In
order to unify the quality of our food throughout the country, the
Group has established a set of guidelines and procedures applicable
to restaurants in different regions, enabling each region to identify
available suppliers via standardized approach. Base on this,
adjustments on the assessment process will be made according to
the specific needs of each region, thereby promoting the efficiency
and accuracy of such assessment. The general monitoring process in
each region is as follows:

First, we make comparisons according to the market prices, and also
consider cost factors such as procurement cycle, inventory and
transportation to determine the allocation of orders. For quality
inspection, the receiving department is responsible for the
preliminary acceptance of products with the main duties of checking
the product packaging, quantity and supplier’s inspection report. The
user department is responsible for tracking the use of products. If
the quality is found to be unstable, the department should
investigate the reasons. If such problem is found to be caused by
suppliers, we would first warn the suppliers and request for return,
and then help them conduct acceptance inspection pursuant to our
delivery standard. In addition, the delivery time of suppliers is also of
great importance. Our purchasing department is responsible for
filling out the relevant orders according to the summary statement
of their on-time delivery rate, while the warehouse was responsible
for recording the delivery time and quantity. Each department works
in coordination to achieve the most effective evaluation on the
suppliers.

In addition, we have added indicators on suppliers’ environmental
and social risks. We have incorporated green and environmental
protection into our procurement review standards, combined with
safety, environmental protection, quality and risk management, to
encourage suppliers to use more environmentally friendly products
and focus on recycling, and continuously monitored suppliers’
performance.

In order to assure the quality of our suppliers as well as the stability
of our products, contracts are generally entered into on an annual
basis and will only be renewed if the suppliers have outstanding
performance.
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Under strict supplier management, our product quality maintained
stable over the past year, achieving a satisfying operation
performance. In addition, the quality of our suppliers is remarkable,
which increased from only three suppliers with 1SO certification in
2018 to 12 suppliers with I1ISO 9000 certification in 2021. In 2022,
we had 15 suppliers possessing ISO certification, and such number
further increased to 18 in 2023. In the future, we will encourage
our suppliers to optimize product quality and enhance their
respective availability for further development by collaborating with
suppliers in every respect for mutual prosperity.

Gain Popularity among Customers with Multiple levels
of Supervision

During 2023, no product of the Group has been returned for safety
and health reasons.

Customers always come first for the Group. Customer satisfaction is
an important indicator for a restaurant’s performance. We have in
place an Express Hotline for Opinion Feedbacks and online
evaluation platform, allowing customers to make direct conversation
with our senior management and give feedbacks with only a call.
For complaints we will investigate the cause down to employee
level, and for appreciation, we will raise the performance evaluation
of involved employees.

All restaurants under the Group’s brands uphold the principle of
customer orientation, safeguarding the quality of our dishes strictly.
Quality is strictly monitored by kitchen staff and waitstaff so as to
assure that no expired or unhealthy, stale food will be served on
table. During the process of cutting and allocating the dishes by
kitchen staff, the first round of food safety guarantee would be
conducted. Our frontline staff is also responsible for receiving and
checking the dishes before serving them to the customers. Once any
improper quality is identified in a restaurant, the relevant restaurant
staff has the responsibility to inform the receiving department and
the purchasing department, and then investigate the cause of
defections and use it as an evidence for follow-up actions.

Our Training Manual on Fire Control over Safe Food Production sets
out explanations of food safety including causes, symptoms and
precautions of food poisoning, as well as specifying the duty and
structure of Safety Committee. It is the responsibility of the
committee to research and solve any problems relating to food
safety, organize and coordinate various departments within the
Group for the inspection and monitor of food safety supervision and
management.
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Further Protection and Respect of Our Customers

Respect Customer’s Opinion

During the reporting period, the Group did not record any
complaint from our customers in respect of food safety issue
or required follow-up actions for a long period.

In addition to providing quality food in the catering industry,
Longhui International, places special emphasis on customer
experience. Each of our restaurants collect a large amount of
customer opinion in our day-to-day operations. The scope of
opinion is very broad, ranging from quality and taste of food,
quality of service, to dining environment, and we may receive
opinion in various aspects. The Group operates with customer
oriented principle and renders quality service. Once a customer
gives feedback, our restaurant staff would ask for the reason
first, and manage to answer respective questions. If we fail to
completely meet the customer’s requirements, restaurant
manager will also help address the issue, so as to properly
handle the customer’'s opinion through discussion and
negotiation.

In general, customers give their feedback in our restaurants
immediately, and our staff will also communicate with
customers and manage to satisfy their needs in accordance
with our internal code. For instance, if a customer complains
about the appearance or amount of our food, adhering to our
customer-oriented principle, we will meet the customer’s
requirements as fully as possible, including return of the food
or providing refunds. If customers’ opinion is not well handled,
they may contact the customer service department of the
Group for further handling.

We hope to further improve the Group’s policies in the future
by collecting customer’s feedback and complaint,
understanding the inadequacies in different aspects by
analysing customer’s opinion, so as to enhance our service and
food quality, which in turn improve customer satisfaction on
our brand.
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— Customer Privacy Protection

During the reporting period, the Group did not receive any
complaint due to leakage of customer information.

When collecting customer information for the Group’s record
of premium membership, our staff will explain to them the
purpose for which it is collected, and relevant personal
information will only be collected with their prior consent. In
the meantime, it is our policy that only authorized staff can
get access to customer information. For example, modification
of member information or processing of member’s
accumulated points are limited to the system administrator,
store manager and cashier. Relevant name lists will be given in
each restaurant and office for record with their respective
authorization of staff expressly stipulated. Our frontline staff
serving in each restaurant should follow our guideline when
collecting personal information, which shall not be disclosed
without authorization. After filing customer information in the
Group's internal database, any access to the database shall be
approved by relevant authorized persons and records thereof
should be kept. We believe that under our close surveillance
of privacy, we are able to protect customer information from
unauthorized access by individual staff, thereby avoid customer
information leakage. Other than that, the employment contract
signed by our staff has set out relevant confidential clauses
which stipulated that no leakage of the Group's information is
allowed. Those who acted otherwise will be subject to
punishment or termination of employment contract, and in
extreme cases, be required to make up any loss incurred by
the Group.

Anti-Corruption and Building a Culture of Honesty and
Integrity

During 2023, the Group did not record any case in relation to
corruption.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

B 5

All employees are required to read and sign the Rules on Staff
Reward and Disciplinary Penalty upon induction, which sets out
various scenarios of non-compliance by employees categorized into
serious or less serious violations, while different degrees of penalties
will be imposed for different levels of violations. Forging or
fraudulent use of the Group’s seal or any document, private
transaction with clients or vendors through job advantages, bribery
or profiteering or other activities detrimental to the Group’s interests
conducted by any employee is considered a serious case of violation.
If any employee is found to violate such rules, upon investigation by
various departments and the personnel and administration
department, the Group shall terminate the labour contract and
demand such employee to compensate for relevant losses of the
Group. The Group wishes to enlarge the scale of group monitoring
and promote overall awareness of anti-corruption in our Group
through internal structure review combining with staff reporting.

In the future, we will further optimize the Group’s anti-corruption
mechanism with established policies, provide anti-corruption trainings
for all the Directors and employees and to enhance preventive and
deterrent measures against employees’ non- compliance attempts, in
order to minimize our operating risks and lay a sound foundation for
further business expansion going forward. With such measures, we
hope to strengthen the faith of our management, stakeholders and
the public in Longhui Group.

CIVIC RESPONSIBILITY
Giving Back to Society

The Group has been committed to giving back to society with our
main business and holding various activities annually. However, due
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic from 2020 to 2022 and
the impact of the slowdown in industry growth in 2023, we have
suspended activities for these vyears. In the future, once the
operating environment has improved, we will continue to carry out
various activities to do our part for the community.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to fulfil our corporate social
responsibility by investing more resources in charity events and
encourage all employees to participate so as to promote awareness
for social care and thereby enhancing the corporate image of our
Group.
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RSM Hong Kong

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

RSM

BRGNS B

BEMEERFTE_+/\5R
NEZH _+N>1E

&5t +852 2598 5123

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LONGHUI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Longhui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 102 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a net loss of approximately RMB14,544,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB192,536,000 and approximately RMB190,702,000, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately RMB22,639,000, including borrowings, amount due to
an ultimate controlling shareholder and amounts due to independent
third parties of approximately RMB3,000,000, RMB5,380,000 and
RMB14,259,000 respectively, all of which were recorded under
current liabilities, while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB2,928,000. As stated in note 2, these conditions
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking various
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
which are set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
The validity of the going concern assumption on which the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared depends on
the outcome of these measures, which are subject to multiple
uncertainties, including (i) the successful implementation of cost
control measures and business plans to improve the Group’s
operating results and cash flows; (ii) the receipt of additional sources
of financing from the ultimate substantial shareholder and external
lenders as and when needed; and (iii) the successful of carrying out
fund raising activities to obtain financial resources as and when
needed.

As a result of these multiple uncertainties and in view of the
significance of the extent of the uncertainties relating to ongoing
availability of finance to the Group, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves about the
appropriateness of the use of going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Should the
Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned measures, it might not
be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying amounts of its
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA”) and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of the report. However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.
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We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mok Hon Sang.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2024

Independent Auditors’ Report
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e (onsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Oth@r Comprehensive Income

meEaRRHttE2E R E X

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=H=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E_=F el
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5% ARE T AR T T
Revenue Iy 2= 8 82,273 72,279
Foods and beverage and other RmERABARE A EAm
materials consumables used FEM (27,757) (24,235)
Employee benefits and related B ERA R 10
expenses (37,964) (38,807)
Property rentals and related expenses % & LIEBEH X (6,315) (11,835)
Utilities expenses NEF X (2,338) (2,402)
Depreciation, amortisation, ME BEERXEBRERAE 17,18
impairment, and write-off of BEMITE - #i5- BE
property, plant and equipment and IS
right-of-use assets (18,041) (20,138)
Other operating expenses EMeERY (7,633) (15,748)
Other income, other gains and B A Bt lzs kB8 9
losses, net FEE 7,053 5,446
Loss from operating activities RELEETHHNEE 11 (10,722) (35,440)
Finance expenses, net &R F R 12 (3,849) (2,959)
Loss before tax PR AT 18 (14,571) (38,399)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrE®REe, (FAx) 13 27 (24,291)
Loss for the year FREE (14,544) (62,690)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT & AFFREMHEIE:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ F =N (14,355) (62,305)
Non-controlling interest SEIE RS (189) (385)
(14,544) (62,690)
Loss for the year FRER (14,544) (62,690)
Other comprehensive loss, net of Hivz2mEEE -
income tax MBREEH
Item that may be reclassified KRGt EF 7 HE B m
subsequently to profit or loss: EAE :
Currency translation differences EHELEZER 1,126 (5,797
Total comprehensive loss for FREZHEEEALRH
the year (13,418) (68,481)
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&onsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HeEaRRHEHttE2ZERE X

For the year ended 31 December 2023 i Z = F - =F + = H=+—HIFFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 3 AR¥T T ARBTT
Total comprehensive loss for the UTHZGFTEREMLZHEHEE
year attributable to: e
Owners of the Company ZiN/NGIE ¥ =N (13,229) (68,096)
Non-controlling interest FEVE AR 1 2 (189) (385)
(13,418) (68,481)
Loss per share SREE 14
Basic (RMB cent) ERARED) (14.3) (77.2)
Diluted (RMB cent) HE(ARES) (14.3) (77.2)

2023 £ HEEEEEZERERDIE
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=' Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AN
%/T\l:l

B %% R R AR

As at 31 December 2023 R=ZF==F+=-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F el
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR¥T T AR T
Assets BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BELRHZE 17 1M1 398
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 16,135 11,819
Intangible assets BEEE 19 — =
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RRIE & K EH R 21
receivables I8 3,416 4,611
19,662 16,828
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 22 13,645 15,088
Trade receivables B 5 El 20 1,366 1,955
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFIE - e Rk HMER 21
receivables A 7,800 8,330
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReEEY 23 2,928 1,701
25,739 27,074
Total assets EE#E 45,401 43,902
Equity BR K
Capital and reserves EEXRFEE
Share capital N 24 358 332
Reserves & (188,849) (185,809)
Deficiency attributable to owners 2T # & A FE {5 & 4
of the Company (188,491) (185,477)
Non-controlling interest FEREDS (2,211) (2,022)
Capital deficiency BARE (190,702) (187,499)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R R &

As at 31 December 2023 R=F-—=f#+=-F=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F ===
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR T T ARET T
Liabilities =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HE&BE 18 17,828 14,801
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 29 — 26
17,828 14,827
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables H 5 RIE 25 27,889 24,603
Other payables and accruals HtENREREFTER 26 134,993 128,751
Contract liabilities AHAEE 27 40,797 40,244
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 11,596 14,196
Borrowings BE 28 3,000 5,000
Convertible bonds a8 R E 5 30 — 3,780
218,275 216,574
Total liabilities BEHAE 236,103 231,401
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 45,401 43,902
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (192,536) (189,500)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Hung Shui Chak

Director

EF

REFER_FT_NF=ZA-F+/\B#E "

VHATEERREE:

Yuan Mingjie
AR
Director

EF

2023 F %R
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n\/-_]—\

SREB B %

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=H=+—HIFE

Deficiency attributable to owners of the Company

EONGE 2IN: Y 3
Convertible  Share-based
bonds payments Statutory Capital Non-
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserve Exchange Accumulated controlling Capital
capital premium (note 30) (note 31) (note (a)) (note (b)) reserve losses Sub-total interest  deficiency
THRE URHARER
BERE DES:1 ] EERE EXfE
B RAEE (HE30) (K331 (K& (a) (M3 (b)) ERffE 2HER M OFERES A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL AR®TR ARBTR AR%TR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARWMTR AR®TR AR¥TR AR%Tx
As at 1 January 2022 R-F--%-F-R 230 610,342 1,069 99 10,491 (118,137) 3,798 (645,833) (137,044) (1,637) (138,681)
Loss for the year FRER = = - - i = - (62,305) (62,305) (385) (62,690)
Other comprehensive loss: Hit2EFR:
Currency translation ERERZR
differences = . - — - — (5,791) > (5,791) = (5,791)
Total comprehensive loss for N2 EFEHE
the year T - - — - = (5,791) (62,305) (68,096) (385) (68,481)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HEBLER & BRI AR
share-based payments 5 = = - 2,599 - . — = 2,599 e 2,599
Placing of shares, net RERHEFR 9% 15,389 = = - — . = 15,485 - 15,485
Exercise of share options e R IE 6 2,569 = (996) - = - S 1,579 - 1,579
As at 31 December 2022 WZBZZE+Zf=+-8H
and 1 January 2023 E-2-=%-5-H 332 628,300 1,069 2,599 10,491 (118,137) (1,993) (708,138) (185,477) (2,022) (187,499)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (14,355) (14,355) (189) (14,544)
Other comprehensive Hit2EHE
income:
Currency translation EMERZR
differences = = = = = = 1,126 = 1,126 = 1,126
Total comprehensive FRR2ERE/(FR)EE
income/(loss)
for the year = = = = = = 1,126 (14,355) (13,229) (189) (13,418)
Exercise of share options T R 25 7,724 - (2,599) - - - - 5,150 - 5,150
Conversion of convertible EATRRESBTRHA
bonds 1 6,133 (1,069) - - - - - 5,065 - 5,065
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=f£+-A=+-A 358 642,157 - - 10,491 (118,137) (867) (722,493) (188,491) (2.21) (190,702)
Notes: B 2
(a) Statutory reserve (a) EERE
In accordance with the Articles of Association of all subsidiaries established in BEMBEFEAREMBE(HE]D) KK E
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to RRAIZHEBERMBA - ZZEMBRFEH10%BR
transfer 10% of the profit after tax to the statutory reserve until the reserve BeasMB2EicR@E BEEZFBEINGME
reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be made RHI50% Rk - BAZBHELVBRERERZFTEA
before distributing dividends to equity holders. The statutory reserve can be RBERBAET  EERBAURRNBHAEEER
used to make up for previous years' losses, expand the existing operation or WEE BRRELEXERRANBRARENE
convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries. R o
(b) Capital reserve (b) BAARGEE
It represents the difference between the issued share capital and share HEARABBITRARKRG &EREBHKRE
premium of the Company and the share capital of Longhui International REBERERAFRKEARRR N EEERE
Catering Management Holdings Limited immediately before the reverse REREEERBBARAARAZ Z58 -
acquisition of the Company by Longhui International Catering Management
Holdings Limited.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHERE R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B4 E = F = =4+ =-HA=+—HI F&F =

2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B & ARE T ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZIBFERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B % Bl & 18 (14,571) (38,399)
Adjustments for: ERATIERFAE:
Finance expenses, net B 7S S BB 12 3,849 2,959
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - BER REBITE 11
equipment 580 1,165
Impairment of property, plant and ME BERKEREBE 11
equipment — 761
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE BERLRREZ 9, 1
and equipment U = (144) (173)
Write-off on property, plant and WEME BEREE 11
equipment 13 328
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEERE 11 10,714 8,706
Impairment of right-of-use assets {%Fﬁ%ﬁ%)ﬁiﬁ 11 6,734 9,178
Allowance for expected credit loss B 5 & Hh e Y5k IE 11
on trade and other receivables EHEEE Tﬁﬁﬁ 267 221
Equity-settled share-based VARE 25 45 B LA R 19 11
payments AR = 2,599
Gain on lease modification HEEBIT k= 9 (6,015) (946)
Operating profit/(loss) before HErEEEEHA 2 KE
movements in working capital WEHF,(EE) 1,427 (13,601)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories D, (38 0) 1,443 (2,430)
Decrease in trade receivables T%FH&* T8 Rk 349 616
Decrease in prepayments, deposits ~ FEfTZIE - & Kk
and other receivables Eﬁt[’%% FRIER D 3,836 18,831
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ‘& 5 JE{fEH#E 1,/
Ot 4) 3,286 (4,948)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables b &~ 7k 18 & fE 5+ &
and accruals Gt 4,/ 0 (1,497) 12,858
Increase/(decrease) in contract AHEEEMN,CD)
liabilities 553 (5,121)
Cash generated from operations LEMEHRS 9,397 6,205
Income tax paid BEFEH = (1,682)
Net cash generated from KRETHFRBERS
operating activities = 9,397 4,523
2023 £33 EEBEEEZERARLE 107 C
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I‘/j_\ l:l Eﬁr @ /)lb i %%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=H=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—g-= o
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥ T AR¥ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERZMB 17
equipment (306) (500)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE MERREZ T
plant and equipment 1F )18 144 919
Interest received B A 12 15 17
Net cash (used in)/generated from & & EE (FTH), Frd
investing activities BEFHE (147) 436
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BEZFEHFSRETE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from placing of shares fic & A% 19 FT 15 51 18 = 15,485
Proceeds from exercise of share 17 {0 B8 AR #E PR 15 30IE
options 5,150 1,579
Proceeds from borrowings BEMBRE 3,000 5,000
Loans from independent third parties [A138 7 % = HE%\ 5,000 2,500
Loans from an ultimate controlling M — % R RIERR R R
shareholder BX 6,970 3,031
Interest expense on borrowings BEMNBRX (185) (139)
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (5.000) (4,800)

=

Repayment of loans from EEBLF=FEXR

independent third parties (2,500) (6,597)

Repayment of loans from an ultimate i — A &KTERBRERNE
7

=+
7

controlling shareholder K (1,631) (3,031)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEAR (18,836) (18,385)
Net cash used in financing METEFMARESFE

activities (8,032) (5,357)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeRBESEBYHE M

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2)F& 1,218 (398)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ¥ RERBEELEZEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,701 2,196
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE HEeERBESEEYNERS

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH A

EQUIVALENTS 9 (97)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SXEBEREELZEY

END OF YEAR 2,928 1,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Longhui International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15
October 2009, and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). According to
the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company as at 31 December 2023, Shui Chak Group Limited
(“Shui Chak Group”) is the substantial corporate shareholder
of the Company. The ultimate controlling party of Shui Chak
Group Limited is Mr. Hung Shui Chak (“Mr. Hung”).

The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is 6/F., Queen’s Road Centre, 152
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are engaged in restaurant operation located in the
PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB”). In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“RMB’'000"”) except otherwise indicated. RMB is the
Company’s presentation currency and the functional currency
of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Group. The
functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). The directors of the Company consider the choosing
RMB as the presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”).

2.1
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NN B FE A 3% 2 AR ik & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 = F = =4#+=H=4+—HI F&E

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB14,544,000 during the year ended 31 December 2023
and, as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of approximately RMB192,536,000 and
approximately RMB190,702,000, respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately RMB22,639,000, including borrowings, amount
due to an ultimate controlling shareholder and amounts due to
independent third parties of approximately RMB3,000,000,
RMB5,380,000 and RMB14,259,000 respectively, all of which
were recorded under current liabilities, while the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB2,928,000.
These circumstances indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and therefore that it maybe
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

During the year, the directors of the Company have taken
various measures with an aim to improve the Group’s liquidity
position. The directors of the Company have prepared a cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months from
the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements
based on the existing situation, the future events and
commitments of the Group. The directors of the Company
considered that the Group will have adequate working capital
to meet its obligations, therefore the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared under a going
concern basis. Measures taken by the Directors, include but
not limited to:

(i) the ultimate substantial shareholder of the Company has
agreed to provide continuous financial support to the
Group to enable it to meets its obligations when due;

(i)  negotiating with the Group’s principal bank for new
banking facilities;

(i)  management has been endeavoring to improve the
Group's operating results and cash flows through various
cost control measures and will slow down the opening of
new restaurants or will close underperforming
restaurants in the future; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

(iv)  the Group is actively considering to raise new capital by
carrying out fund raising activities including but not
limited to rights issue, open offer and placing of new
shares.

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainty exists as to
whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern which would depend upon (i) the successful
implementation of cost control measures and business plans to
improve the Group'’s operating results and cash flows; (ii) the
receipt of additional sources of financing from the ultimate
substantial shareholder and external lenders as and when
needed; and (iii) the successful of carrying out fund raising
activities to obtain financial resources as and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying amounts of its assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for future liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities to current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1

mAEEE)
FESEEE(H)

vy "EEERERETERERD
BREAETRNHER 2FREER
REHR UESHEHES -

BENN AEEELTHELEDNRF
EERTHEEMN  SHBURRN : ()KI
EmAAEGEE R XA E - AN
EAKENREXERASR  (VEHR
FERNERKIERRRINBERA
RERBIIBERR: RiiVEBFE
RRDFAREEEHUESHEEIR

B AKEEBEXZFEEEHRE ]
FEEHHE SEHEEREEBA
FHAEKEE  ARBEARELIRG
BEFREREF XORKERBDEE
RABEEHTBERRBEERAE - L
MEBEABNEERBENGREMBR
KPR -

2023 3 REEBKFERERAE

e e

mmm




=' Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
%/T\lzu

Bt #%5 #R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=-H=+—HIFZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(a)

112

Application of new and amendments to IFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

|[FRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12

International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

FE R 37 5T B A A2 5] B B B %

HEAIE 2 ([ Bl PR B 3%

(Continued) WwEER ) (E)
(a) Application of new and amendments to IFRSs (a) FERFET R A& 5T Bl R B 75 3R

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to
IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”

The Group has adopted Amendments to IAS 12
"Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction” for the first time in the
current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences
— e.g. leases.

Prior to the adoption of Amendments to IAS 12, the
Group applied the initial recognition exemption under
paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 for leasing transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences, and therefore no deferred tax has been

R (A

FE /5 B B & 5 2E R 1238 (15
AR BE-—XGELHEE
KB E B9 E A H 1%
&

=

AEERNERNFEERFAER
BRTERIE1258 (BRI A)[ B2 8 —
RHEEMNEERBBERBOR
FEFRIA ] o 3% FHE AT AN WE 146
RBREE AFRELEFER
AEEEREEE LIRS — A
WmHE -

RIERABR S 2RI E 1258 (1583
R)ET AEBERIBEBEBSTE
Bl BISR2ABRMEELS
BEAEEEREZEE 2 HER
SEBVGBERRR Bt B

recognised for temporary differences relating to ) 46 ek 58 B B AR B R R o 2 A
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recognition, and also over the lease terms under

paragraph 22(c) of IAS 12.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=-H=+—HIFZ

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

(@) Application of new and amendments to IFRSs

114

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to
IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”
(Continued)

The Group has applied the transitional provisions under
paragraphs 98K and 98L of Amendments to IAS 12 to
leasing transactions that occur on or after the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented and also, at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented by:

(i) Recognising a deferred tax asset to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised, and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities; and

(i)  Recognising the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

Based on the management’'s assessment, there was
immaterial impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2022, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023, because the deferred tax
assets and the deferred tax liabilities recognised as a
result of the adoption of Amendments to IAS 12 qualify
for offsetting under paragraph 74 of IAS 12. The change
primarily impacts disclosures of components of deferred
tax assets and liabilities in note 29, but does not impact
the overall deferred tax balances presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position as the
related deferred tax balances qualify for offsetting under
IAS 12.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 1 — 1 January 2024
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 — Non- 1 January 2024
current Liabilities with Covenants
Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease 1 January 2024

Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 — 1 January 2024
Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to IAS 21 — Lack of 1 January 2025
Exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 To be determined
— Sale or Contribution of Assets by the IASB

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the amendments to IFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 = F = =4#+=H=4+—HI F&E

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to being their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bl 2 = F = =4#+=H=4+—HI F&E

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERGTBEER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivables. The
Group's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investments. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group generates revenue from restaurant operation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts and sales
related taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers, when specific criteria have been met
as described below:

The revenue is recognised at a point in time when the related
catering services have been rendered to customers. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediate after dining.

As part of the Group’s ordinary activities, cash coupons and
prepaid cards are sold to customers. The receipts in respect of
cash coupons and prepaid cards from customers for which the
services have not been rendered are recognised as contract
liabilities until the relevant services are performed.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of shops, office and warehouse that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE :

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., ERESFBRRER(HF)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE (&)

Right-of-use assets ZEHEZE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: ERAEEENK AL :

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease e HEBGBEWNVLHAERE: 'I
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement e REEHHAMBAMIZAXNE
date, less any lease incentives received; EREERE  BREAMMASHE

BELRE:
e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and s  AEEEANAWNYVBEENA:
&

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . AEBFIEBEREBEE &
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring REBEEFMTEHIHABEE
the site on which it is located or restoring the MIEZHER R RIEGFTEERN
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms A BE BT EE A BVl ST AR o
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated ERAEEERKATE HEEMR
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any P E R REEE - W M E R
remeasurement of lease liabilities. EHEAGBELRAE -
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to REBE ST TE A NEBERE
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of BREHBEEEEMERNERAESR
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to ERFAAREEAFERAFHAERLE
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are ARITE - -EHMBEAT EREER
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its ERESEAREMAGAERAEHRA
estimated useful life and the lease term. HUAREER/RE)NIRITE -

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item AEBEZINGERAEEEREZES BN

on the consolidated statement of financial position. MKZEILIAE

r
==
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=-H=+—HIFZ

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option;

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment; and

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 i 2 = F = =4+ = H =1+ —HI FF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in HK$ to the Group’'s presentation
currency RMB are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in exchange reserve.

Current and deferred tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax s
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the jurisdictions where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 B ZE-F - =4+ - H=+—HI ﬁf/;

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill
and deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and at the time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Company and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the foreseeable future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =% +=H=+—HI ﬁE[{

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

—  Vehicles: 5 years

—  Machineries: 5 years

—  Furniture: 5 years

—  Equipment and computers: 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements: 5 years to 8 years (shorter of
remaining term of the lease and the estimated useful
lives of assets)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets

less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

the straight-line method. The assets’ residual values and useful

lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=-H=+—HIFZ

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
asset with finite useful life is provided on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets include computer software, and is measured
at cost. Computer software is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of 5 years.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible asset with
finite useful life to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EREFTHXRER(F)

INFORMATION (Continued)

Inventories 7E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FERKAR]EEFEAPRESE?

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. AR - BT IR PNt P EFHE - A&

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for REFEEFTENGAEEREMBMN

inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs FFTERR AN FETHEEMT KR -

necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale ETHEMENXNABRERHEEREE

include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and *H RS EXANMAEERAETHE

non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make WBEEMIFIZEEH AR o

the sale.

Related parties transactions BEIXRS

A party is considered to be related to the Company if: ETIERT BAATHERARAR

ZEER

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is @ BATHEZATZEBRBEELEAE
related to the Group if that person: SEBEET  MERAL:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Company; () EHSERESAAG

(i) has significant influence over the Company; or (i) HAEARBBEAFE: K

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of D= ¥ VNS /NI RS /NG o
the Company or of a parent of the Company. FTEEHEEKE -

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following by %EBHEERTEEZHER-
conditions applies: fitt 75 & 7 B A fa] ik 14 -

() the entity and the Company are members of the () ZEREREAQABR—%HF
same group (which means that each parent, ZEKBRARI(REE AT -
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the 0= NI AR EN i NGRS
others); BEAEMEE)

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —HEEEAZ—EBENKS
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a RAZEELE(H B &
member of a group which the other entity is a /NS Ao /N I
member); ME—BEBAEZEEZX

8)

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy METEHAER-—F=ZFH

party; AEDE:
r
mmmg
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

(b)

134

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Company. If the Company is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employees are
also related to the Company;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in note (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealing with the
entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources, or
obligations between the Company and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z =—F = =41+ =F =41 —Hi ﬁE[{ =

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 = F = =F+=-H=+—HIFZ

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significant reduces an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 Bt 2 =F = =F +=H=+—HIFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents) which are
subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-months ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instruments at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instruments at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instruments’ external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and
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